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2008/2009 Annual Report

| am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings Limited (the
"Company”| together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2009. Amidst the background of global economic downturn, the
Group is reporting a year of record profit. For the year under review, the
Group achieved a profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$347 million, a more than three fold increase (2007,/08: HK$ 107
million) while turnover increased by 47 per cent to HK$2,784 million (2007 /
08: HK$ 1,895 million).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents (2007/08: HK1.5 cents per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the Company's regisfer of members on 4 August, 2009. An
inferim dividend of HK1 cent per share was paid for the six months ended 30
September 2008 (2007 /08: HK1 cent per share|. Subject fo shareholders’
approval af the forthcoming annual general meeting, the proposed final

dividend will be paid on or before 20 August, 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market

2008 was a bewildered year. Early in the year, oil prices hit US$ 150 per
barrel, gold prices soared to US$ 1,000 per ounce and local steel prices
jumped to over HK$ 10,000 per ton. Then, with the failure of Lehman Brothers
which marked the formal commencement of the global financial crisis, the
world's confidence suddenly collapsed. As a result, Hong Kong's economy
experienced a downturn with GDP declined by 7.8% in the first quarter of
2009.

Foundation Piling

Despite such economic background, the Group's foundation division achieved
remarkable results during the year under review with a tunover of HK$ 1,347
million and net contribution of HK$ 173 million, an increase of 25% and 87%
respectively as compared fo last year. Majority of the Group's contracts were
from the private sector. The Group's major contracts on hand include, inter
alia, K. Wah's joint venture project at Welfare Road, Hong Kong Housing
Authority's project in Shatin ex-police married quarters and Chinese University's
student hostel site B. With established leadership position in the industry, the
Group is confident in its ability to secure a healthy order book in the coming
year.
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Other Construction Related Sectors

During the year under review, the turnover and operating profit of the Group's
electrical and mechanical engineering division and building construction
division was HK$ 135 million and HK$9 million respectively. The Group
expects the building construction division will continue fo contribute positive
return fo the Group.

The machinery hiring and trading division recorded a turnover of HK$ 16
million with an operating profit of HK$6 million during the year under review.
With the gradual pickup of the machinery leasing and trading market, the
Group expects the division to remain stable.

China Market

Shanghai, Tianjin and Shenyang, the three cities where the Group's property
projects are located, continue fo rank among the highest growth cities in
China. In 2008, China’s GDP grew 9.0% to over Rmb30,067 billion with a
per capita GDP of Rmb22,640. Shanghai recorded a GDP growth of 9.7% to
Rmb1,370 billion with a per capita GDP of Rmb72,536. Tianjin experienced
a GDP growth of 16.5% to Rmb635 billion with a per capita GDP of
Rmb55,473 while Shenyang achieved a GDP growth of 16.3% to Rmb386
billion with a per capita GDP of Rmb54,106 in 2008.

Property Investment and Management

The Group's investment properties in Shanghai and Tianjin continue fo enjoy
steady recurrent income and satisfactory occupancy rates. Turnover of the
property investment division during the year under review amounted to

HK$105 million.

With timely upgrading and renovation works, Tianjin International Building,
continued to command the highest rental in Tianjin. With the Beijing-Tianjin 30
minutes high-speed rail being put into service since August 2008, the distance
between the two major centers has become closer which in turn benefit the
overall economic development of Tianjin.

The Group's property management division plays a vital role as it provides
quality services to both our service apartments’ tenants and development
projects’ residents. It is the Group's belief and experience that a distinctive
property management team will benefit both the sales and amplify the value of
the property projects.

Il:.l.
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Property Development

The Group continues fo enjoy the sales derived from ifs property development
project in Shanghai. With the strategic planning of our upcoming projects’
schedules, the Group expects this division to bring in substantial and stable
profit in the coming financial years.

The Waterfront

The Waterfront, a residential development situated along the Suzhou river in
Shanghai, comprises 9 towers of 993 units with a total GFA of about
147,000 sqm. The Group has so far launched 6 towers of The Waterfront. For
the year under review, a fotal of HK$ 1.2 billion was recognized as revenues
while contribution to profit amounted to HK$570 million. Based on the latest
selling price of about Rmb30,000 per sqm, the remaining unsold area of the
development is worth over HK$2 billion. With the recent central government's
stimulus package, buyers have regained confidence as signified by our recent
increase in sales. Depending on market condition, pre-sale of the remaining 3

fowers of low rise may commence later in the year.
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The Riverside

The Riverside, a downtown residential development along the Haihe river in
Tianjin, comprises 6 blocks of 30-storey towers with a total GFA of
approximately 75,000 sqm. Foundation work was completed and the
construction of 2 residential towers had been completed to roof level while the
other 4 towers were up to about 20th floor. Subject to market conditions and
demand, the Group has scheduled to launch the pre-sale in the coming
financial year.

Shenyang Project

The site in Shenyang is located at Huanggu District with an area of about
41,210 sqm and a GFA of approximately 165,000 sqm. The project is
currently in the planning stage and is intended to be developed into quality
residential and commercial development. With strong execution capability
and experience acquired, the Group is confident of its ability to replicate ifs
successful business model in Shenyang.

PROSPECTS

Over the past few months, global concerted efforts were made to salvage the
financial crisis but the remaining distance to reach smooth sailing is yet to be
seen. However, the Group believes the outlook of the Hong Kong economy
should not be worse than 2008. A vital component for Hong Kong's recovery
is its long term relevance to China's economy which is in a strong position in
regaining its momentum. With the local government's defermination fo
implement massive infrastructure projects, the prospect of the construction
industry is promising. Foundation piling, being the earliest stage of
construction, is thus expected to be the first to benefit in the sector. With proven
frack records and as a leader in the industry, the Group is confident in ifs ability
fo capture the coming opportunifies.

With 30 years of reform, China has accrued a certain level of national
reserves and established a relatively stable system of its own in governing its
financial institutions. Thus, despite the impact of the global financial tsunami,
China is likely to be the first fo recover or even come out as a winner from this
crisis. The central government's stimulus package of expansionary monetary
and fiscal policies appeared to cast positive response on the property market.
So far, the central government policy has been successful in stabilizing the
performance of the property market and boosted transaction volume.
However, the Group remains cautious as the recent rebound is indeed a policy
driven market which is prone to big fluctuations should there be drastic policy
changes. Regardless of the above observations, we remain confident in the
longer term prospect of China’s property market.
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looking ahead, the Group will continue to place its emphasis in China with
assefs located in prime cities and locations. With solid asset location and
prudent cashflow management, the Group is confident that it can withstand
any sudden inflation or recession which may hit the market and will be able to
come out of the storm in better and stronger position. In addition, the Group
will continue to strengthen its project management, human resources
management and cultivate its corporate culture which are all crucial elements
for the Group's long term growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group continues fo adopt a prudent financing policy and sustain a sound
capital structure with healthy cashflow. As at 31 March 2009, the Group's
cash on hand was approximately HK$279 million {31 March 2008:
HK$247 million) while total assets and net assets [after deducting minority
interests) were approximately HK$3,626 million (31 March 2008:
HK$3,698 million) and HK$ 1,211 million (31 March 2008: HK$859
million) respectively. As at 31 March 2009, the Group's working capital
amounted to HK$281 million.

The Group's net borrowings were HK$361 million as compared to HK$277
million in the previous period. Net debt to equity (includes minority inferests)
gearing rafio was the same as last year at 19 per cent. As at 31 March 2009,
contingent liabilities increased from HK$ 136 million to HK$ 154 million in
relation to guarantees of performance bonds while guarantees for end user
mortgage loans had all been released. Certain of the Group's assets with a
book value of approximately HK$696 million have been pledged to secure
cerfain banking facilities of the Group. The Group’s bank borrowings were
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars but Renminbi loan facilities have
also been arranged for its China subsidiaries. Currency exposure in the
Renminbi borrowings has been hedged by the Group's Renminbi assets and
revenue generated by its China properties.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries and joint ventures in Hong Kong and
China, employed approximately 1,300 employees as at 31 March 2009.
The Group's remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing market
salary levels and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Fringe benefits include provident fund, medical insurance and
fraining. In addition, share options may also be granted in accordance to the
terms of the Group's approved share option scheme.
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Audit Committee

The Group's Audit Committee has adopted new terms of reference in 2009 in
order to comply with the requirements of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices sef out in the Listing Rules. The Group's Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. lung
Chee Ming George, who are independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Group's Audit Commitiee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the Group’s audited results for the year ended 31 March 2009.

APPRECIATION

[ would also like to express our sincere gratitude to our former Financial
Controller and Company Secrefary, Mr. Chan Kit Yan who resigned in June
2009 to pursue his personal goals. | would like to take this opportunity to thank
him for his invaluable contribution to the Company during the tenure of his
office. With the departure of Mr. Chan, | am pleased to announce and extend
my warm welcome to Miss Mo Wai Ling who took over the position of
Financial Controller and Miss Wong Suk Han Kitty, Associate Director of
Corporate Affairs, who took over the position of Company Secretary.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude fo all our
staff for their dedication, hard work and confribution especially during such
challenging period. In addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders
for their support of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
FRANCIS CHEUNG

Chairman
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEUNG Francis, Chairman, aged 56, is the controlling shareholder of
the Group. Mr Cheung is primarily responsible for the formulation of the
Group's strategies, overall policy making and direction of its business
development. He currently also acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He has over 31 years' experience in corporate
management. Mr Cheung is a member of Tianjin Municipal Committee of The
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference and an Advisory Professor
of Tianjin Nankai University. He is also a member of the Board of Governors
of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a member of the Board of Directors of four
primary schools and the President of Youth Outreach.

Mr FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, Vice Chairman & Managing Director, aged 54,
joined the Group in May 1994. Mr Fung is primarily responsible for business
development, strategic planning as well as general and project management
of the Group. He has over 30 years’ experience in the field of consulting
engineering, construction management and property deve|opmem.

Mr CHIEN David, aged 44, joined the Group in March 1997 Mr Chien is
primarily responsible for organizing and managing the operations of the
Group's PRC Property Division. He was the founder of China Garden and has
over 18 years’ experience in the property investment, development and
management field, both in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Miss KWOK Jennifer, aged 43, joined the Group in January 1997.
Miss Kwok is primarily responsible for the Group's corporate planning and
development, corporate finance and investment strategies. She has over
19 years' experience in the finance field specializing in corporate finance
and direct investment. She holds a Master of Science Degree in Management
from Massachusetts Insfitute of Technology Sloan School of Management.

Mr CHIU Chin Hung, aged 56, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr Chiu is
responsible for the business development and management of the Group's
foundation business. He has over 31 years’ experience in foundation design
and construction works and represents the Group's Foundation Division as a
Council Member of The Hong Kong Construction Association.

Mr WONG Kay, aged 46, joined the Group in October 1996. Mr Wong is
the General Manager of the Group's PRC Division and the Director & General
Manager of the Group's E&M Division. He is primarily responsible for
organizing and managing the operations of the Group's PRC property
business and its E&M business in Hong Kong. He has over 24 years’
experience in the construction industry with more than 16 years in project
management in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr FAN Chor Ho Paul, BBS, JP, aged 67, was appointed in August 1993.
Mr Fan currently also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was the former
Non-Executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from
3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory
Committee to the Securities and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and
again serving in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He is holding
appointments on Government boards and committees including the Chairman
of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star in July 2005, and was awarded with the Badge of Honour in
1991 and was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993. He is the Chairman of

Paul Fan Securities Limited.

Mr TSE Man Bun, aged 66, was appointed in September 2004. Mr Tse
currently also acfs as a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is presently a Director of CDSR Development
Group Limited, and is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of HSBC
Insurance (Asia) Limited, HSBC Life (International) Limited, Crystal International
Limited and China Fishery Group Limited. Mr Tse has over 40 years working
experience in the banking industry. He joined The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and retired from the bank in December
2002. During his service with the HSBC group, he was assigned many key
positions, including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director, Wayfoong
Finance Limited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior Executive,
Commercial Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr Tse is well versed in the
reviewing and analysis of corporate financial statements and has an in-depth
understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.

Mr LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 52, was appointed in August 2007. Mr lung
currently also acts as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is
presently a Senior District Director of Manulife (Infernational) Limited leading a
team of over 360 insurance/financial advisers. He first joined Manulife in
1990 and has since achieved outstanding results. Actively involved in
community services, Mr Lung was awarded one of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons of Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of The Outstanding
Young Persons Association in 2001 to 2002. Mr lung was awarded the
Medal of Honour by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Furthermore, Mr Lung is a Committee Member of the Board of
Govemors of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a Member of the Guangdong
Daya Bay Nuclear Power Station/lingao Nuclear Power Station, Nuclear
Safety Consultative Committee and the Chairman of Hong Kong Youth
Exchange Promotion United Association. Mr Lung is currently a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LAU Kin Fai, aged 48, joined the Group in July 2008. As the
Associate Director of the Group, Mr Lau is primarily responsible for assisting
the Board in the PRC related business. Prior to joining the group, he had over
24 years' experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing
development with the last 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing
Society. Mr lau is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Mr CHEUNG Harvey Jackel, aged 32, joined the Group in June 2006. As
the Associate Director of the Group and the Assistant General Manager of the
Group's PRC Design Administration Division, Mr Cheung is primarily
responsible for the architectural design of the Group's property development
projects in the PRC. He has over 8 years experience in the architectural
design in the PRC. Mr Cheung is Mr Francis Cheung's son.

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 45, joined the Group in Feb 2008. As the
Financial Controller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 22 years' experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr LAl Kok Wai, aged 51, joined the Group in July 1994. As the Director of
the Group's Foundation Division, Mr Lai is responsible for the planning,
coordinating and controlling of the fechnical operations and administration of
the division. He has over 29 years' experience in civil engineering, building
and foundation design and construction works. Mr Lai also represents the
Group's Foundation Division fo sit in various Government’s panels and

committees.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr CHAN George, aged 55, joined the Group in February 2009. As a
Director of Tysan Foundation Limited, Mr Chan is responsible for the business
development of the Group's Foundation Division and oversees the Design
Department. He has over 32 years' experience in design and project
management of commercial, residential, hotel, insfitutional and super high-rise
projects, in parficular those of larger scale and complex nature. He excels in
engineering skill and knowledge as well as consfruction planning.

Mr SUM Tin Fat Albert, aged 46, joined the Group in March 1997. As the
Confracts Manager of Tysan Building Construction Company Limited, Mr Sum
is primarily responsible for the management of projects in the Building Division.
He has over 23 years' experience in the building construction field.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 45, joined the Group in June 2007. As the
Company Secretary of the Group and Associate Director of Corporate Affairs,
Miss Wong is primarily responsible for company secrefarial matters, legal and
investor relations matters. She has over 15 years’ experience in the corporate
finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a Solicitor qualified in Hong Kong and
has been admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court in England and Wales.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance and

has adopted the code provisions sef out in the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”]. For the financial year ended 31 March

2009, the Company has complied with the Code save as disclosed in section
(E) below.

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(B)

The board of directors (the "Board”] oversees the management, business,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Company and ifs
subsidiaries [the "Group”). It has delegated the day-fo-day responsibility
to the executive directors of the Company [“Directors”) and senior
management who perform their duties under the leadership of the
Managing Director. At the time of delegation, the Board gives clear
directions o Executive Directors as to the matters that must be approved
by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf of the Group. The
functions reserved to the Board and delegated fo the Executive Directors
and senior management are reviewed by the Board to ensure that such
delegation remains appropriate fo the needs of the Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises a tofal of nine Directors, with six Executive
Directors, being Mr. Francis Cheung, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor, Mr.
David Chien, Miss Jennifer Kwok, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung and Mr. Wong
Kay and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. Fan Chor
Ho Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun, and Mr. Lung Chee Ming George.

The Company has received the annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-Executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in
character and judgement and that they all meet the specific
independence criteria as required by the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationship with each other.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

There is a clear division on the roles of chairman and managing director
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced

distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Francis Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the
formation of the Group's sirategies, overall policy making, and direction
of its business development. He is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant and key
issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in @
timely manner.

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor, the Vice-Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company, is responsible for the strategic planning as well as the
general and project management of the Group. He is responsible for
implementing the Group's strategy fo achieve business objectives with the
assistance of Executive Directors and senior management.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board meets at least four times a year and additional meetings will
be held as and when required. During the financial year ended 31
March 2009, the Board held four meetings [save for the executive Board
meetings held between the Executive Directors during the normal course
of business of the Company).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting
agenda and each Director may request inclusion of ifems in the agenda.
A notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all Board
meetings. Relevant information is circulated to all Directors normally three
days in advance of the Board meetings.

FARMBERARAG @
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With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
and that they receive adequate information in a timely manner fo assist
them to make informed decisions and discharge their duties as Directors.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and members of senior management of the Company to ensure
that board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The Directors [including the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee] will have access to independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, when
appropriate, at the Company’s expense.

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate details and
draft minutes are circulated fo all Directors and committee members for
comments before being approved by the Board and committee. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors.

The attendance of each Board member is as follows:

HE R E
Executive Directors Attendance
M. Francis Cheung (Chairman) 4/4
M. Fung Chiu Chak Victor
(Vice-Chairman & Managing Director] 4/4
M:r. David Chien 4/4
Miss Jennifer Kwok 4/4
M:r. Chiu Chin Hung 4/4
Mr. Wong Kay 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul 4/4
Mr. Tse Man Bun 4/4
Mr. lung Chee Ming George 4/4
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment and removal of Directors. All Direcfors newly appointed
o fill @ casual vacancy are subject to election at the first general meeting
following the appointment. During the year ended 31 March 2009, the
Company has complied with the Code save for the following deviations.

According fo the Bye-laws of the Company, onehird of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting, provided
that notwithstanding anything therein, the chairman of the Board or the
managing director of the Company shall not be subject to refirement by
rofation or be taken into account in defermining the number of directors to
retire. As continuity is a key factor to the successful long term
implementation of business plans, the Board believes that the roles of the
chairman of the Board and the managing director provide the Group
with strong and consisfent leadership and allow effective planning and
execution of long-term business strategies. As such, the Board is of the
view that the chairman of the Board and the managing director of the
Company should not be subject fo retirement by rotation.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
ferm but are subject fo retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. As
such, the Board is of the view that the Independent Non-Executive
Direcfors do not have to be appointed for a specific term.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Every Director is required to keep abreast of his/her responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Group. On appointment, new Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal induction on the Group’s business and his/her responsibilities and
a Director.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules ("Model
Code"| as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard sef out
in the Model Code for the year under review.

FARMBERARAG @
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The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Remuneration
Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999 and has adopted
new terms of reference in 2009 in order to comply with the requirements

of the Code.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group,
reviewing the Group’s financial information and compliance and
providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor
Ho Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Lung Chee Ming George, who are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Each member of the Audit
Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own profession. Mr. Fan
Chor Ho Paul and Mr. Tse Man Bun possess appropriate accounting or
relevant financial management expertise and meet the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary is the secretfary of
the Audit Committee.
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(G) BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance of each committee member is as
follows:

HE IR

Independent Non-Executive Directors Attendance
M. Fan Chor Ho Paul

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2

Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2

Mr. lung Chee Ming George 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's inferim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2008 and final results for
the year ended 31 March 2009, and reviewed and discussed with the
external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the management in
relation to auditing, system of internal control, and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the connected
fransactions entered into by the Group during the year and made
recommendation fo the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed and approved the remuneration of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Code. It is
responsible for making recommendations fo the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management and is delegated by the Board to determine specific
remuneration packages for all Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. It is the Group's policy to provide
remuneration packages at fair market value in order fo attract and retain
high quality staff.

The Remuneration Committee comprises an Executive Director, Mr.
Francis Cheung and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul and Mr. Tse Man Bun.

FARMBERARAG @
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(G) BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

(H)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings and the attendance of each committee
member is as follows:

IR
Directors Attendance
M. Francis Cheung
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 3/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors
M. Fan Chor Ho Paul 3/3
Mr. Tse Man Bun 3/3

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policy and recommended the remuneration packages and discrefionary
bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior management for the
Board's consideration.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
statements of the Company are set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” on pages 33 and 34.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Group was
charged HK$2,350,000 for auditing services and a total of
HK$213,000 for non-auditing services by the Company's auditors, Emst
& Young.

The fees charged for non-auditing services included, inter alia, (i)
HK$ 120,000 for review of interim results, (i) HK$ 14,000 for review of
notifiable and continuing connected transactions, and (iii) HK$63,000
for faxation services.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility fo ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets and the investments of
the shareholders of the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee
conduct annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group covering the financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. Based on the assessment made by the
senior management of the Group, the Board and the Audit Committee
consider that the Group's internal control systems are effective and
adequate for ifs present requirements.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company maintains a high level of fransparency in communicating
with shareholders of the Company. Information of the Group's
performance, business strategies, developments and prospects is
provided in the Company’s interim and annual reports. Shareholders of
the Company are encouraged to attend the annual general meetfing and
general meetings of the Company which offer forums for communications
with the management. The Vice-chairman and Managing Director of the
Board and the members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee attended the 2008 annual general meeting and were
available to answer questions.

The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be
dealt with at general meetings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders of the Company are informed of the procedure and their
rights to demand a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and its
Bye-laws. The procedures for voting by poll are set out in the Company’s
circular relating to the general meeting and will be explained during the
meeting before voting on the resolutions.

The Company has also maintained a website (www.tysan.com| to keep
the shareholders of the Company, our stakeholders and the investing
public informed of our latest business development, results
announcements, financial reports, other announcements, circulars and
other relevant shareholder information.
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2008/2009 Annual Report

The directors herein present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates are set out in
notes 19 and 20 1o the financial statements, respectively.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the sfate of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 35 to 126.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year fo shareholders on the register of members
on 4 August 2009. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarises the consolidated results, asses, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2009, as
exiracted from the published audited financial statements. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

“EENE —TEN\F ZEELF ZZETRF _TTAHE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FET FET FET AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
/NG Profit/(loss| attributable
LN, (BE) fo equity holders
of the Company 346,675 107,411 43,083 20,977 (22,467
BEE Total assets 3,626,172 3,698,463 2991242 2,286,389 1,867,822
mEE Total liabilities 1,691,480 2,205,079 1,751,510 1,178,197 843,816
NS Yy Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,211,078 858,869 680,212 606,477 553,851
DER R ER Minority inferests 723,614 634,515 559,520 501,715 470,155
3,626,172 3,698,463 2,991,242 2,286,389 1,867,822
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in nofe 14 fo the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the Group's investment properties during the year are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements. Further particulars of the Group's
investment properties af the balance sheet dafe are set out on page 83 of the
annual report.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the Group's properties under development are sef out in note 17 fo
the financial statements and on page 85 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properties held for sale are set out in note 23 fo the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are sef out in notes 33 and 34 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rafa basis fo existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of ifs subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are sef out in note 35 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the balance sheet date, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted
to HK$29,926,000 of which HK$ 12,573,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's share premium account,
in the amount of HK$519,253,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest custfomers accounted
for 30% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to 9%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 45% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 18%. Purchases during the year
not yet charged fo the income sfatement, including the cost of contract works in
progress, have been included in arriving at the relevant percentages.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial inferest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:
Executive directors:

M. Francis Cheung

M:r. Fung Chiu Chak Victor
M:r. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

M:r. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul
Mr. Tse Man Bun
M:r. Lung Chee Ming George

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung and Mr. Tse
Man Bun will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Fan Chor Ho Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Lung Chee Ming George and as
at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 8 to 11 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
sfatutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below in the section headed "Connected transactions”, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any confract of
significance to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

FARMBERARAG @
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REEE  ARRAEEREETHAERK
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(i) REARBEBBERZIHFE :

BEREF Name of directors

RFEZLAE M Francis Cheung
IEEESE M Fung Chiv Chak Victor
BAXEBIEHE M. David Chien
BEZ/PNE  Miss Jennifer Kwok
HEBLEE M Chiv Chin Hung
EEKE M. Wong Kay
HXWEE M Tse Man Bun

B

1. ZZ R f Power Link Investments
Limited# & 171,237,000 &
Long Billion International Limited# &
85,088,000(% - ZE R FEIHA KRR
AR o

2. ZEROAMRRZELLEREMAZE
BEFRMES -

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At the balance sheet date, the interests and long positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in the share capital and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")|, as recorded in the register
required fo be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notfified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EARTF

ERTRE

Aok

FELBRRERERNEE Percentage of

Number of ordinary shares held and nature of interest the Company’s

BA AT Hit st issued share
Personal Corporate Other Total capital
27,407,865 256,325,0001  54,247,200% 337,980,065 40.3
66,867,600 — — 66,867,600 8.0
08,771,020 — — 08,771,020 11.8
16,500,000 — — 16,500,000 2.0
5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 0.6
10,765,000 — — 10,765,000 1.3
442,000 — — 447,000 0.1

Notes:

1. 171,237,000 shares were held by Power Link Investments Limited and
85,088,000 shares were held by Long Billion International Limited. Both of
these companies are confrolled by Mr. Francis Cheung.

2. Such shares were held by a discretionary trust, the founder of which is Mr.
Francis Cheung.
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EEHS

Name of directors

BRE S
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor

#HE A

Miss Jennifer Kwok

BREL
Mr. Wong Kay

et
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Company:

HELERE
Name of associated
corporations

RAREIRARAA]

Tysan Building Construction
Company Limifed

FARIERBAERAT

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited

RAEFAERAF

Tysan Trading Company
Limited

RAEFBRAF

Tysan Trading Company
Limited

RATERRBEBR AR

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited

Nofe:

(i) Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the

FEEBRRBNERME

Number of ordinary shares held

1B A

Personal

800

20

20

2,200

and nature of interest
NG| et

Corporate Total

5,100,000 5,100,000

o 800

— 2,200

These shares were held by Victor Create Limited which was controlled by
M. Fung Chiu Chak Victor.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

(i) Long positions in share options of the Company:

EFEREANBRERE
BEfE Number of options directly

Name of directors beneficially owned

M. Francis Cheung 8,000,000
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor 8,000,000
Mr. David Chien 2,250,000
Miss Jennifer Kwok 3,500,000
M:r. Chiu Chin Hung 2,500,000
Mr. Wong Kay 5,000,000

In addition fo the above, certain directors have non-beneficial personal equity
inferests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company solely for
the purpose of complying with the minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required fo be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading "Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and long positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the
section “Share opfion scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children
or chief executive or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”| for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are
disclosed in nofe 34 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
outstanding during the year:

BREHE
Number of share options
R Rz
R k353 TRER"
28% ZERNE =B EREZ Exercise
HEGER BA-B EARE FROE FAIE FARE =1-A ®ag* BREZ price
Name or A1 Gronted  Exercised  Expired  Forfeited At31 Dote of BB ofshare
category of April during during during during March grant of Exercise period opfions**
participant 2008 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2009 shareoptions*  of shareoptions*  ERIET
HKS per share
g%
Directors
FRELE 8,000,000 - - - — 8000000 =—ZELE “ERLE 0.82
Mr. Froncis Cheung NAZtEA  NAZtEAZE
24-82007 “E-F
NAZ+=R
2482007 to
2382011
EEERE 8,000,000 - - - — 8000000 —ZTEtE _ETTtE 0.82
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak NAZtmEB NAZtWmEEZ
Victor 2482007 —Z—-f
NAZ+=H
2482007 1o
2382011
D E bk 3,000,000 — {750,000 - — 2250000 =—ZRtE “ERLE 0.82
Mr. David Chien NAZtEA  NA=ZtRAZ
24-82007 “E--F
NAZ1+=R
24-82007 to
2382011
DHZE 3,500,000 - - - — 3500000 —ZEtE It & 2 0.82
Miss Jennifer Kwok MNAZTEE  NAZTREZ
2482007 _E-F
NAZT+=H
24-82007 1o
2382011
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BREHE
Number of share options
R
R ZEENE
8% ZBENE =p  EREZ
HASER BA-B EARH FRGE FA3E  fAkE =1-A Rag*
Name or A1 Gronted  Exercised  Expired  Forfeited A3l Date of
category of Al during  duing  during  during  March grantof
participant 2008 theyer  theyear  theyear  theyear 2009 share opfions*
g%
Directors
BRBEE 2,500,000 - — — — 2500000 =—ZTtF
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung NAZ+mA
24:82007
BRAE 5,000,000 - - - — 5000000 =Z%LE
Mr. Wong Kay NAZ+EA
24:82007
EfEg
Other employees
CHI 5,000,000 - — - — 5000000 =ZZZtF
In aggregate NAZTHEE
2482007
35,000,000 — {750,000 - — 34,250,000

ARAEFNMATRZBREZEZDHRZ Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

P& -

* BREARE_TENFN\AZT= ¥ Each grantee is allowed fo exercise up to 25% of the share options granted
B (BEER) BRESLARATITE from the date of grant up to and including 23 August 2008. Thereafter, the
THB2B% B - 1k - 8 -F percentage of the share options which may be exercised by each grantee
ZENFENAZTHERE_ZTTNF is increased fo 50% for the period from 24 August 2008 up to and
NRZ+Z=R (BEER) BREEAH including 23 August 2009, further to 75% for the period from 24 August
RAFATEBREZBDLENE 2009 up to and including 23 August 2010, and further 100% for the
50%: B-_ZTAFENA-THARE period from 24 August 2010 up to and including 23 August 201 1.
Z-Z-ZFNAZ+=R(BEE
B) S AR AT REREZ
BALBENETSRRE-E—FF
NAZ+WERE-F——%)/\A=
T=H(BHEER) RS AR AT
TEBREZA D HLIEMNEI00% -

** BRI 2 AT EAR A B AR S AT AR B **  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
T AR R B A SOV B T % of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
HAE - capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

*x ER - ARERHNZEBRER N

BTz KWmERTOETT -

R-ZEZLFNA-_tHOARLZBERER

RREL

AR

Exercise period

of share options*

2482007 o
2382011

“ERtE

24:8-2007 to
2382011

et
NEZtmHE
“EF
NAZT=H
24-8-2007 to
2382011

which the options were exercised was HK$0.70.

BREL
TRER™

Exercise

price

of share
opfions**

ghiET

HKS per share

0.82

0.82

0.82

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date on

AEAR-TELEN\AZHAE-FTL

FAR-_TLRHBER -

The options offered on 24 August 2007 were accepted by the offerees
between 30 August 2007 and 27 September 2007.



FERRRRG REERSD 2R

REER  BEARARREEFRPEHHF
BeHFAFEZHREGCHEFAELRFL
BITIRAB%IA L2 T

RARBEBRZHR

cooscoo i BHEHMBEBREBRAG @

3R Wk

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At the balance sheet date, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of inferests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EADRC BT

BREEBERES BB
Number of  Percentage of the
ordinary ~ Company’s issued

= Name shares held share capital
Power Link Investments Limited™ Power Link Investments Limited!"! 171,237,000 20.4
Eastern Glory Development Limited®  Eastern Glory Development Limited 12 256,325,000 30.6
Goldcrest Enterprises Limited? Coldcrest Enterprises Limited 256,325,000 30.6
Bofield Holdings Limited? Bofield Holdings Limited 256,325,000 30.6
Long Billion International Limited” long Billion Infernational Limited " 85,088,000 10.2
Bt Notes:

(1) kit Power Link Investments Limited & Long
Billion International Limited 2 # 25 75 & 1
EXTESEREETHABR RN RAAEK
MZERRIFE ] — R EREELE Y
NS

2)  #%EALEBEZHPower Link Investments
Limited 2 Long Billion International Limited
2 B AR BESS 446 B 266,325,0000% A2 17 R
B s -

BAMEN  R-FEAE=A=1—8
BEm A+ (X [EERESTRABRBRH
RARBIR A 2 5 RT R | — B 2
AATEFREIEARABRI) DBEHE
BARTRGLIAMBR AT AR EESE RS
DI E 336 T R 2 B AR -

[1)  The above interests of Power Link Investments Limited and Long Billion
International Limited have also been disclosed as corporate interests of Mr.
Francis Cheung in the section headed "Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and long positions in shares and underlying shares” above.

[2)  These parties were deemed to have inferests in the 256,325,000 shares
by virtue of their equity interests in Power Link Investments Limited and long
Billion Infernational Limited.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2009, no person, other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company, whose inferests are set out in the
section headed “Directors” and chief executive’s interests and long positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
fo be recorded pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) Non-exempt continuing connected transaction

On 26 January 2006, Tysan Foundation Limited ("TF"), Tysan

HTIBRERAR ([REMHETRE]) -
RARECRFDARAR ([RARE
(BRPF)])  REREIRERAA
([(REZEIR]) RREIERBEE
BRAR(RATRERRE]) T LB HE
([l  UEBH_-_ET E—
A—BEZZTZNF+ZA=1+—H
L=FHMZELR (BERSEZHB
RA) 2z EBEAERRIED#

BE-ETN\F+-A=T-ALF

Construction (Macau) Limited ["TCM"), Tysan Building Construction
Company limited ["TBC") and Tysan Engineering Company Limited
["TEC") entered info a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) fo
regulate the business relationship and subcontracting of works among
them (including their subsidiaries) for a three years period from 1 January

2006 to 31 December 2008.

B

iz

(i

(ii)

(iii)

FRARZEBEET DAL

ZAMWETRREARE (RM)
B 5 #1#7151,000,000% 7T 2 12 £
TRTRARETIRZMBRA
BRRFARECRM) BRAA (R
7]

RABETZE 5 F4600,0007%
TZRETIRTRATIRERRBZ
MBARZATR(BA)ERA
A([REIRGEBR]) &

ZAIR(EBE)EDHY
4,200,000 T2 EETRR YRR
FREETHE o

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the following

subcontracting of works were carried out amongst the companies

mentioned above:

(i

(i)

(iii)

TF and TCM subcontracted building works of approximately
HK$151.0 million to Mac Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited
("Mac Tysan”), a subsidiary of TBC;

TBC subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of
approximately HK$0.6 million fo Tysan Engineering [HK) Company
Limited ["TEHK"), a subsidiary of TEC; and

TEHK subcontracted building works of approximately HK$4.2
million to TBC.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(a)

(b)

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction (Cont'd)

These fransactions were enfered into by the companies in their ordinary
and usual course of business in accordance with the terms of the
agreements, conducted on normal commercial terms and the amounts of
these fransactions did not exceed the cap amounts as prescribed in the
Master Agreement. These fransactions had been reviewed by the
Company’s independent non-executive directors and approved by the
Company’s board of directors.

Both TF and TCM are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. TBC
and TEC are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. TBC is
owned as to 50% by the Company, 50% by a company controlled by
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor [“Mr. Fung”). TEC is owned as to 70% by the
Company, 8% by Mr. Fung and 22% by Mr. Wong Kay ["Mr. Wong").
As both Mr. Fung and Mr. Wong are directors of the Company, TBC and
TEC (including their subsidiaries) are connected persons of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”] on
the Stock Exchange. Thus, the transactions mentioned above constitute
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Renewal of tenancy agreement

On 29 October 2007, Great Regent Investments Limited (" Great
Regent”| renewed ifs tenancy agreement with Land Smart Development
Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. David Chien, an executive
director of the Company, in respect of a lease for an office property at
Shanghai for a two-year period from 1 August 2007 to 31 July 2009.
The renewal was negotiated at arm’s length and was on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable and reflecting the prevailing
market rental and conditions.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of one of the
Company's loan agreements, which contain covenants requiring performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant o a facility
agreement entered info by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company with a syndicate of banks and financial insfitutions on & March
2007 for a four-year term loan facility of up to HK$185,000,000, o
termination event would arise if Mr. Francis Cheung, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, ceased to own and control either directly or
indirectly in aggregate at least 30% of the shareholdings and voting rights in
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s tofal issued share
capital was held by the public as af the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tysan Holdings Limited set out on
pages 35 fo 126, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory nofes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the frue
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining infernal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the confents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

FARMBERARAG @
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider infernal control relevant
fo the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the enfity’s infernal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the stafe of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F., Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

26 June 2009
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Changes in fair value of investment properties
Other expenses, nef

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

DIVIDENDS
Interim
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted

FARMBERARAG @

g

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

i3
Notes

5

Year ended 31 March 2009 BZ=ZTTNF=RA=1+—HILFE

“EThF —EENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,784,090 1,895,049
(1,980,220) (1,608,529)
803,870 286,520
23,195 21,091
(15,250) (16,232)
(53,191) (56,009
(28,646) 89
(17,688) (5,134)
(25,434) (19,508
686,856 210,727
(266,092) (60,696]
420,764 150,031
346,675 107,411
74,089 42,620
420,764 150,031
8,382 8,375
12,573 12,562
20,955 20,937

HK41.37 cents /&1l HK12.83 cents 711l

N/ATER HK12.80 cents &1Ll
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2009 R=ZBZAF=RA=+—H

FRBEE

Mmx - BBERRE
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BlETE
HRRITEE
AR
RREAE

RBEEFE
REERRDEE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Properties under development
Deposit paid for land acquisition
Inferests in associates

Other assets

Deferred tax assefs

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Amounts due from customers for confract works

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Tax prepaid

Time deposifs

Restricted cash

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables, deposits received
and receipts in advance
Amounts due fo customers for contract works
Deposits received
Inferest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

i3
Nofes

21
22
23
24
25

26

27
27
27

28

29
24
30
31

—EThFE ZETIT)N\HF
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000
176,339 194,376
1,206,160 1,210,660
103,566 106,347
309,862 254,512
348,835 177,536
1,000 1,020
29,051 —
2,174,813 1,044,451
270,374 529,966
2,501 14,452
31,283 18,006
473,876 303,521
53,818 78,703
300,165 284,000
33739 238,677
7,035 40,157
96,477 28,768
56,675 3,537
125416 214,225
1,451,359 1,754,012
406,904 221,967
55,304 70,883
132,106 166,399
34,853 927,714
396,851 255,075
144,464 43,566
1,170,482 1,685,604
280,877 68,408
2,455,690 2,012,859
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont’d)

31 March 2009 R=ZZNFE=A=1+—H

—BEAE —BBNF

2009 2008
fit st FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HEERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,455,690 2,012,850
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
I BRITIEE Inferest-bearing bank borrowings 31 242,579 268,399
EXEHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 278,419 251,076
BERBAR Total non-current liabilities 520,998 519,475
BEFE Net assets 1,934,692 1,493,384
Em EQUITY
ARRRR Equity attributable to equity holders
FEh R = of the Company
BRI Issued capital 33 83,821 83,746
] Reserves 35(a) 1,127,257 775,123
1,211,078 858,869
DYRREDR Minority interests 723,614 634,515
B Total equity 1,934,692 1,493,384
EZE EFE

Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZTAF=A=+—HI5FE
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* RERREREE

A1 Aprl 2007

Bxchange reclignment and foal
incom ond expense for fhe year
recognised diecty in equiy

Profiforhe year

Totolncome and expense for e year

Final 2007 dividend declored

Dividends peid fo minory sharefolders

Repayment ofloan rom minory
shorefolders

Eaitysefled shore opfon aangements

Iierin 2008 dvidend

Progosed ind 2008 dividend

Tondlerfom retined profs

A1 31 Morch 2008

At 1 Api 2008

Bxchange reclignment and oo
incom ond expense for fhe yeor
recognised diecfyin equiy

Profitfor e year

Totolncome and expense for he year
Finol 2008 dlvidend declored
Dividends paid fo minory shareholders
Loan rom o minory shorehalder
Bercis ofshore opfons
Eauitysetled share opfon arongemen's
Disposal of pril nfeestn

o subsidiory
Irin 2009 dividend
Proposed ind 2009 ividend

Tondlerfom retined profis

At 31 March 2000

BRERGAEEABRZE ¢
A 151,127,257,0008 T (Z 2T )\ F :
775,123,000/ 7T) °

FAARREGTIISE
Atributoblefo equiy holders of the Company
B BEE B i

BET  BEE R Fak rERE HURR
B5 e Shwe  EERE  Dchonge REEF/  Proposed e 4E&
kwed  premum  opfon ooy fucoion  Retoined fne B Moy Totl
wpll  occount resee  reenes  reene profis/  dvidend  Toll inkeess equiy
iFi Rt TEr TR TR TR TR TR TR TEL T
Noles HS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  FKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000

(K12 noe
3lol)

83746 518437 = 508 MO73 811 12562 680212 999920 1239732
- - - - A8 - — A8 53940 138398
- - - - - 074N = 107411 42600 150,031
- - - — 8448 10741 — 191869 950 288429
- - - - - = (12562 [12562) - 12562
- - - - - - - = (17565 [17,50))
_ - - - - - - - [4000] (4000
- - 775 - - - s - 77
12 - - - - - B3I - B3N - B3
12 - - - - - (12562 12562 - - -
- - - 8] - (61) - - - -
83746 518437%  77085% 5364 128531% 102504%  12562¢ B3B8 634515 1493384
83746 518437%  7708% 5364 128531% 102504*  12562¢  8BBE9  634515 1493384
- - - - WH0 - - 060 12008 748
- - - - - e6rs — 6675 74089 420764
- - - = 060 346675 - Y735 ole7 453512
- - - - - - (12862 (12562 - (12560
- - - - - - - - 78I [7861)
- - - - - - - - 10800 10800
3 75 816 (276] - - - - 615 - 615
- - 519 - - - - 519 - 5%
- - - - - - - - 7 7
12 - - - - - 838 - 8382 - 3382
12 - - - - - (573 12573 - - -
= - - 189 - (189) - - - -
83621 519258 12642 5583 149201% 428035 12573 1201078 723614 1934692

HK$1,1

sheet.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
27,257,000 [2008: HK$775,123,000) in the consolidated balance
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2009 BZ=ZTTNF=RA=1+—HILFE

ZEENE —ZEN\EF
2009 2008
i3 TEx FET
Nofes HK$000 HK$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 686,856 210,727
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 6 25,434 19,598
Interest income 5 (1,631) (2,343)
Dividend income from listed investments 7 (334) (28)
Gain on disposal and write-off of items of
property, plant and equipment 57 (1,283) 6,088
Gain on disposal of an investment property 57 (897) (4,164)
Gain on prepaid land lease payments resumed 57 — (3,183)
Gain on disposal of partial inferest in @ subsidiary 57 (410) =
Equity-seffled share option expense 5193 7,725
Depreciation /14 49 428 40,828
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 7,16 2,780 1,190
Fair value losses on equity investments af
fair value through profit or loss 7 4,294 3,380
Changes in fair value of investment properies 15 28,646 (89)
Impairment of other assefs 7 20 20
Impairment/(write-back of impaiment) of
frade receivables 7 1,220 (88)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 7 8,963 67
Impairment of an amount due from an associate 7 10 15
808,289 267,567
Decrease/(increase) in properties under
development and properties held for sale 59,357 (285,858)
Deposits paid for land acquisition (167,474) (177,536)
Increase in inventories (22,240) (8,119)
Decrease in amounts due from customers for
contract works 24,885 14,770
Increase in trade receivables (17,385) (21,330)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, prepayments
and deposits 204,938 (190,549)
Decrease in resfricted cash 3,537 348,912
Increase/(decrease] in frade payables
and accruals 187,165 (17,222]
Increase/|decrease) in other payables, deposits
received and receipls in advance (15,579) 5,554
Increase/[decrease) in amounts due to customers
for contract works (34,293) 79,542
Increase/ (decrease] in deposits received (892,861) 426,864
Cash generated from operations 138,339 442,595
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 March 2009 BHZ=TZNF=A=+—HItFE

ESREARANE

(TRE]) B :

B

Rt
BREFEHRRE :

&b

it
IEEXREH  HEFR

REREEBLRERA/
(//luuuj) /?%ﬁ

REREXBZRENRE
B2
FiREZBREBA
BADE BERFEER
BARENE
EARMIHEER
BATE ABR

ZRABREZRD /(3 m)
HEDE  BER

REERMEHE
HE-EREBNEMFNE
HE-RNBARES

R EHIE
—ABE ARRFKEM
RBRHBRE2EM
RER=MEA%RIHZ

T HFEEM

REREXB AL ROFE

i3

Nofes

Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"):
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Taxes refunded in the PRC:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividend income from listed invesiments
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 14
Additions fo investment properties 15
Additions o prepaid land lease payments 16
Decrease/ (increase) in equity invesiments af
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of an investment property
Proceeds from disposal of partial inferest in
a subsidiary
Increase in amount due from an associate
Increase in resfricted cash
Increase in fime deposit with original maturity more
than three months when required

Net cash oufflow from investing activifies

2009 2008
FiEw TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(4,733) (397)
(135,395) [56,556)
113 167
1 6
(16,927 (42,673
(18,602) 343,142
1,631 2,343
334 28
(33,262) (118,211)
- (6,007]
- (109,892)
7,657 [16,956)
3,306 20,898
2,360 39,464
403 —
(10) (15)
(56,675) -
(2,205) -
(76,461 (188,348)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on bank borrowings

Increase/ (decrease) in trust receipt loans

New bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Issue of new shares for share options exercised
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Repayment of loans from minority shareholders
Loan from @ minority shareholder

Interim dividend paid

Final dividend paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when acquired

Bank overdrafts

#3  BL 4 Uik B AR (80
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 March 2009 HEZZFZNF=A=+—HILFE

“ETNE —ZTN\F

2009 2008

i3 T TR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(29,951) (32,916]

(15,071) 58,071

1,164,067 577,274
(1,026,059 (751,820)

33 615 =
(7,861) (17,565]
o (4,000]

10,800 =
(8,382) 8,375]
(12,562) (12,562

75,596 (191,893)

(19,467) [37,099)

234,550 250,533

4,605 21,116

219,688 234,550

27 125,416 214,225
27 94,272 28,768
31 — (8,443)
219,688 234,550

FASEERARAN S
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B

EF

Director

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables,

prepayments and deposits

Bank balances

Tofal current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

EFE

Director

2008/2009 Annual Report

ft et
Notes

19
28

33
35(b)

—EENE -—TEN\F
2009 2008
FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000
792,161 789,053
159 169
193 270
352 439
146,169 144,892
702 663
146,871 145,555
(146,519) (145,116
645,642 643,937
83,821 83,746
561,821 560,191
645,642 643,937
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in

Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
1/F Harbour Centre, 25

business of The Company is located at 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:
e foundation piling

o electrical and mechanical ("E&M”) engineering and building

construction
*  machinery leasing and frading
*  properly investment and management

*  properly development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs"| (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interprefat
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally

ions) issued by the Hong Kong

accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and certain
equity investments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

FARMBERARAG @
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group’)
for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the dafe on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions and
infercompany balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Minority interests represent the inferests of outside shareholders not held
by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company's subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
sfatements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HKAS 19 = The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assef, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Inferaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements and there have
been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these

financial statements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an Invesiment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate '

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Firstime Adoption of HKFRSs ?

HKFRS 2 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment -Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Business Combinations *

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments fo HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments !

HKFRS 8

Operating Segments !

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements !

HKAS 23 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements *

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on liquidation !

HKAS 39 Amendment
Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items *

FARMBERARAG @
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HKAS 39 Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int @ Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -
Embedded Derivatives ?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

Agreements for the Consfruction of Real Esfate '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers 2

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to HKFRSs*
which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view
fo removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Except for the
amendment fo HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments fo HKFRS 5, HKFRS
7 HKAS T, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19,
HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31,
HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS
47,

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that while the adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised) may
result in changes in accounting policies and HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1
(Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures, these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

FARMBERARAG @
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as fo obtain benéfits from ifs
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group's inferesfs in associates are stafed in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
festing for an asset is required (other than properties held for sale,
properties under development, inventories, consruction contract asses,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount
is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made af each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, but not
fo an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation] had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited fo the income sfatement in the period in which
it arises.



24 TESTHRBE (B)

BEA £+

ER—STMBATER  ARBARE
BeBEAL:

(a)

BB —FKLAERFNRAA]

ERYEE(NEHAEE XK
SEEHSIEAEEXR—FE
B (IR AEEREER - 1A
REZRGHAEETREAY

87 FiEREHAEER

Lk YNGR

RORAGREZEIREEARE
F—HBKE

&% 77 753 (a) 3K (c) Fir it <2 {E fa] &l B A
TRRZIEH

ZAR—RER BERIMER
c)jz (cl) Ffr 32t <2 A 4] {1 Bl A 422

HAZHHEATE  Fl)H
d)FﬁLZfﬂ (BN PNe=R 3=
EREZERBZEREERE &

ZARAEEREBNEMRILLZ
EBR®RENFTE 2T Z/K
SEBBEALZENER

cooscoo i BHEHMBEBREBRAG @
SO 5 Ak o W i

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Related parties

A parly is considered to be related to the Group if:

(al

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more infermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or iii] has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred
to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benef t plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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(Cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an ifem of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
aftributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected fo be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably,
the expenditure is capifalised as an additional cost of that assef or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-ine basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to ifs residual value over ifs
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Building 5%
Equipment and machinery 10%-33/%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements

10%-331/%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, atf least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the
income sfatement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly aftributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the balance sheet date are classified as current assefs.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the balance sheet at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, interest
capitalised during the period of development and other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable value is
defermined by reference to the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and costs of
marketing and selling.
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(Cont'd)
Leased assets

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets fo the Group, other than legal fitle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assefs. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease ferms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assefs leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited fo the income statement on the
straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are inifially stated af
cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of ifs financial assefs after initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet dafe.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the dafe that the Group commits fo purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assefs within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for frading are recognised in the income
sfatement.

The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any dividends on these financial assefs, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for "Revenue
recognition” below.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried af amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and fransaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair valve

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business af the balance sheet date. For investments where
there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
other valuation models.
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(Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on loans and receivables, which are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted af
the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
inferest rate computed at initial recognition|. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, fo
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence [such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor] that the Group will not be able
to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights fo receive cash flows from the assef, but
has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “passthrough” arrangement; or

o the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
fransferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised fo the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
assef. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-setiled option or similar provision) on
the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent
of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing loans
and borrowings|

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
The related interest expense is recognised within “finance cost” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income sfatement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee confracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted
for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee confract is recognised
initially at ifs fair value less transaction costs that are directly affributable
fo the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except
when such contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date; and [ii] the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, first-out basis,
and net realisable value after making due oHowonce for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Nef realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed confract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract cosfs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the
relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a contract customer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo a confract customer.
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(Cont'd)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive] has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income sfatement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax is recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured af the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the
taxation authorities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, where the
fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax assefs and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

*  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the inifial recognition of an asset or liability
and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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(Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the exfent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rafes that are
expected to apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assefs and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabiliies and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a)  From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building consfruction
contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Consfruction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

[c]  From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(d)  Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

(e)  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
(f)|  Interestincome

On an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the nef carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

[g] Dividend income

When the shareholders’ right fo receive payment has been

established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked fo the price of the

shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the
"vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled
fransactions af each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are freafed as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is safisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-setiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the fotal fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet
date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the
year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were held
separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
confributions to the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund refirement
benefit scheme [the “MPF Scheme”], the Group has restructured its
retirement scheme arrangements fo comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
the MPF Scheme.

vest fully with the employees when contributed info

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central pension
scheme. The confributions are charged o the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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(Cont'd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of fime to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines ifs own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the fransactions. Monetary
assefs and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken fo the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monetfary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was defermined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated info the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling atf the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate component of
equity as the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to

that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income stafement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
makes various judgements and estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial stafements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on management’s judgement. Significant judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according fo the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are based on actual cost incurred
over the tofal budgeted cost. Corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered info and the date when the activity is completed usually
fall into different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and confract costs in the budget
prepared for each consfruction contract as the contract progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these maters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such defermination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China and the Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authority. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in defermining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management's best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which such determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on
a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (i} on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segment
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary defails of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the E&M engineering and building construction segment;
(c]  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d)  the property invesiment and management segment; and
[e)  the property development segment.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue is attributed
fo the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
affributed fo the segments based on the location of the assets.

Infersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference fo the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.



H

=

a

BAEMERARA

2008/2009 4 #

A 5 A e A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

===l

31 March 2009 —ZTNEF

160051 790z (E8EA
(96909 (260992 2]
JL/01T 968989 X0} 210jaq oy
86561l (ver'st R YUER
8 7ee SJUBLLISaAU Pays| ey
Wi} Wodu| puspiAl] ZEguT
et 1891 aWoou! Salsyy| Y[
16 S0l — - (Sv8/cl (9lzes)  wevOel  86TOS  co/wS €89l 45Ul TeT9 599 9506 OV sypsas uaufiog BEEC
670568 060787 (wwrSl (Y - - 86867 T8I 666001  e98WOL  STSIE  LE/9L  pT/06l  BSEL  /BE6/0L 8199E'L oL £y
- - A I V4 - - - - - 777’ €8, - 19€'] - €01 saosieubesiy g 7Bl EE L
6705681 06078LT — - - - 85867 [1T8I'L 666001  698WOL (8007 ¥S8SL  pT/06L  SOSWEL  /BE6/0L SIG9PE'l  sewoRmpuspeoseps  JEE L 2K
‘anuaKal juawbag Tl
0008H 0008 QOOSXH  000SYH  OOOSXH  O0OSMH OO 000$XH  O00SMH  0008YH 000X  000SYH  O00.H 0008 0005  000SMH
gt o YRy Zgr Y4 1y YEE gy Y@ ey Vg4 Y@y YRY I3y Yg4 o Mgy YRS
800¢ 6002 800¢ 6002 800¢ 6002 800 6002 800¢ 6002 800¢ 6000 800¢ 6002 800¢ 6002
HVEET HUEET VST FUEET HVEET HVEET $VEET SYEET VT FlaEC £ FUEET IVEET HYEET HVEET FUEEC
paipp]osu0) suojouw3 paiR0[ou) {uewdojanep juswabouow puo mc_ws_ pun Buisoa| vopn4suon Bupying Buid uoyopuno
= 4 14" Asadoyg Juausarul Apsadolg hiaupoyy pun Buzauibua g3 YN
Bl EEREEEL EEREES TERvEd

"800 PUP 6007 YoIoW | £ Pepua siosh ayi Joj sjuswbes sseuisnq
s,dnoigy ayj 1oy uoyowiou; ainjipusdxe pup AjjigRI| 1essp ulppied pup (ssoj) /ijoid ‘enusnel jussaid se|qo} Buimoyjo} sy

sjuswbas sssuisng (o)

[P#ueD) NOILYWIOANI INFWD3S

v

o R E L X
HYE  EFELIUW(EHD)
U B E ek BET
H— +ME HUEETTUHY
%WQIM%EH%KFK

Gl (°)

i

(8) HERY

#

v



2008/2009 Annual Report

=g

==

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

It 5 ke i

31 March 2009 —ZZTh%F

o0l — weeor  — - - - - - - - - - - 2603| puo| pocid LHyvE

10 oadsel U aijpca pydoy) TERUTHY
lzsll e aloe Ll 71y 019 8578 91E'T gy - 59 £l l6r0s w8 Weucinba puo yd fHvE7
hedoid o padses t anypuedee oydoy) e
(48] W — - - - (3] e A - - - - - sajadord usuisenul o ayoa oy ut sabiyy EXEFI7EGEYS
(¢81'¢] - - - - - fesl’e) - - - - - - - paunsai suaufod s0a) puojpiodeid W) [y 2 W EBAT LB KIEY
(o el - - - - I s - - - - - - uodod e o pdspuouoy B Z KN -3
(8091 feaz) 9l - v 2/ oo ml - 17 L weudrbepuopiog edodlo () /g7 BugE
Sl J0 103 puD [osodyp Uo (uof /ssof BY  ERERYET
5 0968 0 (o _ _ _ _ _ (57) _ - - 1669 91|DA 3jgoS]0a 50 0] Sa1jUeY 10 BEHEbT
(mopaji 0 osiosal) /MO (B4 /48
0 00 0c 00 - - - - - - - - - - S0 20 0 woduy JuzERE
(88 07l - - - - - - - 107'] (8] 6l - - EETET (B§5Y) /
(vautodu jo Yoo /ueuiodu ERA A
sjuaukod asos) puo) piodad WERHTNY
BlOTT  0CTS  600T 1057 91¢ 9%1 867§ ul's L1 geey 7L 08 BV9r  SL6SE fooyuioos puo vojozaiceq BRI 8Y
ooy awBas Jaly) HERURE
605007 07'169'L SETOES  LLEWRO'L SISOl [8TVET  l60SC  T8S'9E 7878 9B9WL  £0908  lES'9 €70/l E20TT o] g
£77'8 - - - - - - - - - - - erv'g - s9lqo] waubas U pepnou sjoipeIOYI0g XLV 7R LH HE L
9899617 087'169'L SETOES L0l SISOl [8TVET  l60SC  T8S9E 78T8T  989WL  £0908  lESe9  088VOL  E20T6T salqp| aubag HHY
EOVBO0E  TLI9L9T ERO'LYT  €E99TE  Q6l'LSS'L L6//8r'L SYL'IST [8919TL e/£5C  ESYSL werTIL €808 £9T/Ey  eTTISY $osS0 00 B
£rv's = - - - - - - - - - - tr7'8 - ssso iauBs U paprpu SppRIOYOg  NBLPEZHRBUTERL
000069 11929t €v0'l7C  CE99EE  Q6l'I8SL L6Lu8y'l YUIST 89T 4/ECC ESYRL wErTIL €608 008877 eTTISY sss0 aubig FHEL
salqp] puo sessy L YEYTE
0008H — 0008¥H  O00$XH  0004YH  O00SXH  O00SXH  COOPH 0008 — 000SXH  000SYH  000SH  000SH  000.SH  000$HH
Yg+ ¥4 Iy YRy Ygy  YEE R Y4 gy Yg4 gy YR Lgy Ygd
800¢ 6002 800¢ 6007 800¢ 6007 800¢ 6000 800¢ 6000 800¢ 6002 800¢ 6002
HUEET HYRET HVEET HUEET FVEET HYEET PVEET HUEET HVEET HUEET FVEET HYEET FVEET HVEET
pejopijosuo) pap20]oun juawdojerap Ayedoyg juewaBounu puo Buipo pun Buisoa) vopnysu0d Bupying Bud oyopuno,
o% B Juausanul Apiados Aiaungpoyy puo BuvisauBua g3 afrEy
EERERED FEREES EIEEHE
(p,iuoD) sjuswbes sssuisng (o) (8) LES4z%F ()
(P40 NOILYWIOANI INFWDIS 1 (&) HBEHE v



cooscoo i BHEHMBEBREBRAG @
SO 5 Ak o W i

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H

4. DEER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) #iEE 7 (b) Geographical segments

TREJIREBHEZE_FTTNF The following table presents revenue and certain asset and
FZZEENF=ZA=1+—BLLF expenditure information for the Group's geographical segments for
EoimEsBzBaEkaTE the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

ERFAXZER -

B A TEEMLE &8
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated

IREAE CETN\E ZREAF I\ ZREAF CITNE ZEREAFE CTI)E
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Tz  T#x  TEr  T#x Tz T#x  Téx T

HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

ARUE: Segment revenue:
HETHNAEP  Solestoexiemol cusiomers 1,366,587 859,292 128,698 437421 1,288805 598,336 2784090 1,895,049

HtAEEM T Other segmentinformation:

PEEE Segment assets 826,455 660,367 29414 123525 2770303 2,906,128 3,626,172 3,690,020
PEEERAE  Bonkoverdafts included in

LBEY segment assefs - 8,443 - - - - - 8,443
BEE Total assefs 826,455 668,810 29414 123525 2770303 2906,128 3,626,172 3,698,463
BERY Capilal expendiure 27556 208,271 814 14,059 4892 5773 33262 228,103
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BRRBRZHBE -

AEBEZWE  HBWARENZS
i N

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering and building
construction contracts certified by independent architects or quantity
surveyors; income derived from machinery trading and property
management; rental income from property and machinery leasing; and
income from the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all
significant infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

—EFNE —ZENF

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Yz Revenue:
HEIT Foundation piling 1,346,515 1,079,387
CERBETR E&M engineering and building consfruction 134,505 190,724
BBEHERES Machinery leasing and trading 15,954 26,081
MERERER Property investment and management 104,969 100,999
MEER Property development 1,182,147 497,858
2,784,090 1,895,049
Hi AR &BH Other income and gains:

FEWA Inferest income 1,631 2,343
REERE Insurance claims 7,306 811

HERMEYE Gain on disposal and write-off of
B RREER 2 8H items of property, plant and equipment 1,283 6,088
HE-—BREVMEZET Gain on disposal of an investment property 897 4,164
REAEMN LMBERZRBF  Gainon prepaid land lease payments resumed — 3,183

& — KB A E Gain on disposal of partial

H DR BT inferest in a subsidiary 410 —
GO Subsidy income* 7,681 —
EXAM - R Foreign exchange gains, net 53 1,814
Hth Others 3,934 2,688
23,195 21,091

* BAEZBABRALERERZGHEIR
S

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.
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ELE=g29S 6. FINANCE COSTS
&E GROUP
“BBAE ZEBIZNF
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARBIFAZBEE Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly
ZRITEE RGBS 2B repayable within five years 28,294 33,623
B BRBPMEERL less: Interest capitalised in properties
ZHME (H&F17) under development (nofe 17) (2,860) (14,025)
25,434 19,598
BRBE A1 2 F 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBZBBAEMEAR, GA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at affer charging/[credifing):

THERE&ER

—2EAE  —BENA

2009 2008
fitat FEL FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
E Depreciation 14 49,428 40,828
EHERARNIHEER Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 16 2,780 1,190
T REFEERD Minimum lease payments under operating
ZREBHATR leases of land and buildings 10,533 11,962
REZBIHESE Rental of construction equipment 12,615 14,167
ZERTB 2 - Auditors' remuneration:
REFEE Provision for the year 2,350 2,084
FEERETR Underprovision in the prior year — 5
2,350 2,089
EERA XL Employee benefit expense
(BEEEME —M58) ©  (including directors’ remuneration - note 8):
ITERFS Wages and salaries 191,466 162,875
DA 2 BBk X i Equity-seffled share option expense 5,193 7 Ak
RS EMER Pension scheme confributions 6,174 5,541
202,833 176,141
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

fizt
Notes

Foreign exchange gains, net*

Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
of trade receivables, net*

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value*

Gain on disposal and write-off of items of

property, plant and equipment*
Gain on disposal of an investment property *

Gain on prepaid land lease
payments resumed *
Gain on disposal of partial inferest in
a subsidiary*
Fair value losses on equity investments af
fair value through profit or loss, net*
Impairment of other assets*
Impairment of an amount due from an associate*
Rental income from operating leases
of machinery
Gross rental income from investment properties
less: Direct operating expenses arising on
rental-eaming investment properties

Net renfal income from invesiment properties

EHEREZBRBBA* Dividend income from listed investments*
* EHcHECREREGABRRZIE *
X HFEI R EHRAREF ]

A o

“EETAE  ZTIN\E
2009 2008
T T

HK$000  HK$'000
(53) (1,814)
1,220 88|
8,963 67
(1,283) 16,088]
(897) 14,164]
— (3,183)
(410) -
4,294 3,380
20 20

10 15
(9,998)  (18,427)
(102,859) (99,885)
25,406 27,159
(77,453) (72,726)
(334) (28]

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
and gains” on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules

and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:
£8 GROUP
—EEAE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$7000 HK$'000
Be Fees:
HITES Executive directors — —
BAFNTES Independent non-executive directors 432 360
BTESZHMMS Other emoluments of executive directors:
EXRFHH - BE=EL Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
H 28 R E WA &= allowances and benefits in kind 24,833 23,364
DARBCHE S 2 B v s Equity-sefiled share option expense 4,674 6,961
RIREFEIHR Pension scheme contributions 72 72
30,011 30,757

REF  REARA 2 BRETS G
BERIBEHRRMEIL) - ETEZE
BERAAEBEE®RZRBEXER
B-ZEEREZATEDINRL A
HEE YEREBHEREXRAT
XM AREEHMBEREZEEE
BRNEXEEHE 2 HE -

In prior year, certain direcfors were granted share options, in respect of

their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the

Company, further defails of which are set out in note 34 to the financial

statements. The fair value of such options which has been recognised in

the income statement over the vesting period, was defermined as at the

date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the

current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8.

EEME (8)

ENSENBLUEEMSMT

—BENE
HITEF :

RREXL
BRERE
BRI
HEENE
BRELLE
BREL

BUFNTES
SBEERE
X g
EFRAKLE

st

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

2 - 331 EE
RENFG BRE
Salaries, B Bike

allowances  Employee &t &3k

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

and share Pension
Bne benefits option scheme st
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
FEL FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
2009
Executive directors:
Mr. Francis Cheung — 9,320 1,500 12 10,832
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor — 5,884 1,500 12 7,396
Mr. David Chien — 890 360 12 1,262
Miss Jennifer Kwok — 2,604 420 12 3,036
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 3,312 294 12 3,618
Mr. Wong Kay — 2,823 600 12 3,435
— 24,833 4,674 72 29,579
Independent non-executive directors:
M:r. Fan Chor Ho Paul 144 — — — 144
Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 — — — 144
Mr. lung Chee Ming George 144 — — — 144
432 — — — 432
Total 432 24,833 4,674 72 30,011
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—EEN\F
WITEE:

RRELL
BHERLE
$eE A
BRELL

BUFNTES
BEERE
MXWRE
E
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REER BEEERNELREMNE
RS2 25

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

2008

Executive directors;

Mr. Francis Cheung

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor
Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul

Mr. Chau Cham Son

M. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming George

Tofal
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E23 0 =t E&
REMF &= BRE

Salaries, & Rik&

allowances  Employee  FTEIft 5K

and share Pension
e benefits option scheme @t
Fees in kind benefits  contributions Total
FET FHET FET FET T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
— 8,024 2,165 12 11,101
— 5,488 2,165 12 7,665
— 850 566 12 1,428
— 2,500 661 12 3,173
— 2,854 460 12 3,326
— 2,748 044 12 3,704
— 23,364 6,961 72 30,397
120 — — — 120
48 — — — 48
120 — — — 120
72 — — — 72
360 — — — 360
360 23,364 6,961 72 30,757

waive any remuneration during the year.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are all
directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above.

. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax rate is effective from the year
of assessment 2008,/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March 2009.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been calculated
at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the Group
operafes, based on existing legislation, inferpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

&8 GROUP
—ETHhF ZEENF
2009 2008
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REE RN HIBREE - Provision for tax in respect of profit for the year:
HE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 6,046 1,879
Hiti @ Elsewhere 267,522 59,218
273,568 61,097
FFEEREBTR (BEEE) : Underprovision/|overprovision) in the prior year:
R PRC:
BiE Hong Kong (132) —
H i ith [ Elsewhere 428 459
296 459
EREFIR Deferred tax (7,772) (860)
AEBZRERX BT Total tax charge for the year 266,092 60,696
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10. TAX (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax using the

statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and ifs

subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge/(credit) of the effective tax

HAY (&) ZHEMNT - rate, is as follows:
£E GROUP
—EENF ZETN\F
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B % 515 A Profit before tax 686,856 210,727
PNEER KA B2 A Tox at the sfatutory rafes 164,480 46,968
THIEERRE Provision for land appreciation tax 114,667 17,105
THREN I HETE Tox effect of land appreciation fax (29,051) —
HEAHE 2R RHIE Adijustments in respect of current fax
e 2 38 of previous periods 296 459
BARBBA Income not subject o fax (2,022) (10,690)
AFHRBIE 2 B X Expenses not deductible for fax 12,725 4,937
BEMREAAREEFEREARAT  Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
AR IROER 2 FE profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 18,968 —
BRI MIEEE Tox losses utilised from previous periods (15,251) (3,103)
AERRAEBR Tox losses not recognised 1,280 5,020
BRASEERRXTE Tax charge at the Group's
ZBERE effective rate 266,092 60,696

1. XA B REREALGEF

ARANUNBRREEZBE_ZT
NFEZA=Z+—HBIFEARARAKE
BEGRERFNBEADAZEF
16,841,000 T (Z T T\ F : 15
5,098,000 7T.) (FI5E35(b)) °

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit atfributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit of HK$ 16,841,000
(2008: loss of HK$5,098,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company [note 35(b)).
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12. R &

13.

R B — AR AR 1B
(ZZ2ZNEFE - 1781

B 2 REMRE —
FREL B 5B
(ZZEZENF  1.581)

AERRBRN 2 KBKEERRR]
BRRAGERZBERBFAE L#
/e

ARaEBERRREIEERER

FREXRBF THIZBAR R @R RK
R B R F E 4 A 346,675,000 7T
(ZZZ)N\F :107,411,0008 T) kR
AEERNEBATEBRMETSH
837,930,287 ( = T & N\ #F
837,465,9030%) T & -

ARFERARRBHARTEBEREZT
FERRAARERBRZFHME
WU BERBE_TTAF=ZA=1—
ALEFERIEREBRR 2B ER
KB SEREBRZEREN
TEEEZE -

BE_TT)\FE=-A=+—HLEE
ZHREERMNVZBAQNRLTER
R R FE {835 107,411,000/ STt & ©
HERAAZMEFES L BRRE
AERBEZRTLTERKRE - AFES
M EARBMERTEZRE - URERR
EZFENTEMEEREREER
71,951,146/ X @ A% < INHEF 19 -

13.
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12. DIVIDENDS
—REAE  ZTIT)N\F
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim - HKT cent (2008: HKT cent)
per ordinary share 8,382 8,375
Proposed final - HK1.5 cenfs
(2008: HKT.5 cents)
per ordinary share 12,573 12,562
20,955 20,937

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$346,675,000 (2008: HK$ 107,411,000, and the weighted
average number of 837,930,287 (2008: 837,465,903] ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per ordinary share is presented for the year ended
31 March 2009 since the exercise price of the share options of the
Company outstanding during the year is higher than the average market
price of the Company’s ordinary shares and, accordingly, they have no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per ordinary share.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2008 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$107,411,000. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on

the deemed exercise of all share options info ordinary shares during that
yearof 1,951,145,
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H

GROUP
FERME BAREE g
Equipment  Furniture ot B NxEE
B¥ ond and Motor Motor  Leasehold #;
Building  mochinery ~fixtures  vehicles yocht improvements Totel
Térn  TErn  TEr  FEx Tt  Thrn  TEx
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
31 March 2009
Cost:
At beginning of yeor 27913 710,086 30,626 20,760 6,098 59513 854,99
Additions - 28,808 2467 768 - 119 33,262
Disposals and write-off - (31422)  [1,085)  (1911) - - (34418)
Exchonge realignment - 235 6 125 - 649 1,078
At 31 March 2009 uN3 707707 32077 19,762 6098 61361 854918
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At beginning of year 582 568144 23062 12981 6098 49753 660,620
Depreciafion provided
during the year 1395 40,580 1928 2,333 - 3192 49,428
Disposals and wite-off - (29753) (953)  {1,689) - - [32395)
Exchange realignment - 178 54 56 - 638 926
At 31 March 2009 1977 579,149 24,091 13,681 6,098 53583 678,579
Net book value:
At 31 March 2009 25936 128,558 7,986 6,081 - 7778 176,339
At 31 March 2008 27331 141942 7,564 7,779 S 9760 194376
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14. Y% ~ S R&E (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
C3E] GROUP
RERKSE BAREE il
Equipment  Fumiture R [ NEEE
e and and Motor Mofor  Leasehold &5
Building  machinery fixtures vehicles yacht improvements Total

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

“ZEZ\f=A=+-H 31 March 2008
A Cost:
L) At beginning of yeor — 676128 31383 17574 6,008 60,530 791713
e Additions 27913 76,848 3,615 5,383 - 4452 118211
HE B8 Disposals and write-off — {44024 [4706) (2,569 — (8,478) (59777
ERAEE Exchange reclignment — 1,134 334 372 - 3,009 4849
R-ZEN\F=-A=1-H At 31 Maorch 2008 27913 710086 30626 20760 6098 59,513 854,99
ZHHER Accumuloted depreciafion
BE - and impairment;
)] At beginning of year — 562186 26,063 13,199 6,098 52949 660,495
REE Depreciafion provided
WERE during he year 382 A7 1,424 2,010 - 2,341 40,828
& R Disposals and wite-off - [29348]  (40673) (24066 - (8477] (44,964
ESHE Exchonge realignment - 835 248 238 - 2,940 4,261
RZEZNF=A=t-H At 31 March 2008 582 568144 23002 12,981 6,008 49753 660,620
REFE Net book value:

RZEEN\F=A=+-H At 31 Maorch 2008 27,331 141,942 7,564 7779 - 9760 194376
RZEZ+5=A=+-H At31 March 2007 - 113942 5,320 4,375 - 7581 131218
AEBETET RENEBCHER Certain of the Group's building, equipment and machinery were
RITAASERMRITEE 2B (K pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted to the

#31) o Group [nofe 31).

AEBETRERKSBELERY Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
HETFE=7  BHRNE-TERE parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are
L B 5 3R &% T 536 (a) © included in note 36]a) to the financial statements.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for use
under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses are as follows:

£E GROUP

—EThF ZZTTENF

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

AR Cost 67,606 92,374
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (55,550) (66,408)
ZEPREEE Accumulated impairment losses (182) (362)
REFEE Net book value 11,874 25,604

B 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
58 GROUP

—EThF —TENF

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RENZKEA Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,210,660 1,122,780
IR Additions — 6,007
HE Disposals (1,463) (35,300)
NFEEZH Fair value changes (28,646) 89
E B Exchange realignment 25,609 117,084
REKRZKEA Carrying amount at end of year 1,206,160 1,210,660

FARMBERARAG @

A 5 0 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H
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15. REW=E (&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
AEEZBRENMEZRATHDRES - The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
HEohmuEwmT : ferms in the following geographical locations:
—EEAFE=ZA=1—H 31 March 2009

B
PRC
0 Hithits & e
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT A Medium term leases 11,200 873,600 884,800
REHEL long term leases — 321,360 321,360

11,200 1,194,960 1,206,160

—EENF=RA=+—H 31 March 2008
o
PRC
Bt Hofth i [ st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Tofal
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R HEIFR A Medium term leases 11,800 — 11,800
REHEL long term leases — 1,198,860 1,198,860
11,800 1,198,860 1,210,660
AEBREVEER_TTNF= The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,
A=t—HRBIURXRAERYEM existing use basis, as at 31 March 2009, by Vigers Appraisal and
BRI AR HT & EF BB AR A AR Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
RRAMBRIRERGEEEEHHE - property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third parties
RENMEDIRBLERNVHEETFE = under operating leases, further summary defails of which are included in
7 EEBECE—THEBENYH note 36(a) to the financial statements.
R E36(a) ©
AEEETRENECERTRITE Certain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as
RAAEEREE TRITEECER security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (nofe 31).

(B 5E31) °
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

GROUP

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions during the year

Resumed during the year

Recognised during the year

Carrying amount af end of year

Current portion included in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Non-current portion

—gTRE TINE
2009 2008
FHT FATT

HK$000  HK$'000
109,127 1,437

— 109,892

- 1,012)
(2,780) (1,190)
106,347 109,127
(2,781) 2,780)
103,566 106,347

The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and are

situated in Hong Kong.

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

GROUP

Balance at beginning of year

Additions during the year

Inferest capitalised (nofe 6

Transfer to properties held for sale (nofe 23)
Exchange realignment

Balance af end of year
Current portion

Non-current portion

—EENEF —EENF
2009 2008
FET TFET
HK$7000 HK$'000
784,478 700,598
630,325 665,901
2,860 14,025
(854,310) (672,275)
16,883 76,229
580,236 /84,478
(270,374) (529,966
309,862 2545l
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18. DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND ACQUISITION

Deposit of HK$348,835,000 (2008: HK$177,536,000] was paid
for the acquisition of a parcel of land in Shenyang, the PRC, at a
consideration of approximately RMB307,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$348,835,000). Further defails of the transaction were disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 28 January 2008.

Bf B A R E = . INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NE COMPANY
—E2ThEF —TENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLETRG - REAAR Unlisted shares, at cost 17,038 11,845
L= PNEIPE: Amounts due from subsidiaries 835,549 841,969
E Impairment (60,426) (64,761]
775,123 /77,208
UG ¢ Amounts due fo subsidiaries (146,169) (144,892)
—FRIEHER Portion due within one year,
mEBEHBH classified as current liabilities 146,169 144,892
792,161 789,053

FR - ARBRIETHBLARER
It KT B A Rl 2 R R HE RN E R
4,335,00087C - HE-_TZTN\F=A
=+ HLEFE ERETHEAR
2R HERR B E18 14,053,000 7T -
FEREZEHBARZEREBE
B -REER  WBRARIZRZER
MBARZAEHRERBARES -
FARBEBEIZHNBRRGEFEARNE
KERR—FENEE - M AERD
BEZHBARLEFNBERMEE
ARzt —FAEE  YEABTZSE
MBARZERZER - MBARE
FZHEEAREAFERS -

During the year, the Company received repayment from certain
subsidiaries and write back of impairment of HK$4,335,000 was
recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries. During the year ended 31
March 2008, impairment losses of HK$ 14,053,000 were recognised
for amounts due from certain subsidiaries as those subsidiaries had
suffered losses for years. At the balance sheet date, the amounts due
from and to subsidiaries are unsecured and inferestfree. The balances
with subsidiaries included in the current liabilities are repayable on
demand or within one year whereas the balances with subsidiaries
included in non-current assets are not expected fo be repaid within one
year from the balance sheef dafe and are considered as quasi-equity
loans to those subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of balances with the
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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ML
AR EEE
Place of
incorporation/

=y registration

Name and operations

A (BR)ERBERAT BB

Tysan [Hong Kong) Holdings Hong Kong
Limited

REAMETIRAERLA EE
(MaF1k3) Hong Kong

Tysan Foundation Limited
[notes 1 and 3)

RAFECRM) BRAA BP9
(Bat1) Macau

Tysan Construction (Macau)
Limited [note 1)

FERMEEERRR (HE3) Bt
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong
[note 3)

ooospooo e BOH B EBEBRAE R A G
Yo 25 ik 3 Y
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2008: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the
required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

EBTKR
BREmBRA
RAEE AREEEZ
Nominal value of REBDHL
issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity ETEXH
registered/ attributable to Principal
share capital the Company activities
“EBRhE —TITNF
2009 2008
EBR2ET 100 100 REZER
Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
L 100 100 BT 1R
51,000,000/ 7T Foundation
EIERR piling
3,000,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000
L 100 100 B SR
R P9 25,0007T Foundation
Ordinary piling
MOP25,000
Rl 100 100 BWEE
10,000/ 7T Machinery
AT R hiring
200,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred
HK$200,000
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19. MEBRRER (&)

AAFZ EEMBATHENT : ()

=1

Name

ZAMETE (BE)BERAF
(1)

Tysan Contractors (Hong Kong]
Limited (note 1)

RALHIRERAA
(K1)

Tysan Geotechnical Limited
[note 1)

TEEMTIEBRAF
(Haz1)

Proficiency Equipment Limited
[note 1)

FETREEFRAA
Bz 1)

Proficiency Engineering Limited
[note 1)

MRERAE (K1)
Lion Bright Limited (nofe 1)

FAERBRRA (Ka1Xk3)
Tysan Management Limited
[notes 1 and 3)

ML
EEAU IS 3:u8
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

AR
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

58
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

2008/2009 Annual Report

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

L
6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

EBik2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

TEM2B T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBA100/8 T
B2 T
Ordinary
HK$100
Deferred

HK$2

ARAEME 2
REBFDL

Percentage

of equity

attributable to
the Company

—2EAE
2009

100

100

100

100

100

100

—EENF
2008

100

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HAEER
R A IR

Project management

and provision
of consultancy

services

i B 3 B R
Site
investigation

BWMAEE R
HE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

RETIRRS
Provision of
Provision of
engineering

services

B E R
BE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

TXRER
Corporate
management



19. B R RIEZR (&)

ARBIZEIEMBRRFEWT : (8)

=1

Name

HIEERAA
Sun Sparkle Limited

ERERAF
Great Unison Limited

FERERRBRAA

Tysan Invesiment Limited

FAMEERREERAT
Tysan Property Development
& Investment Limited

REREBRRA
Tysan Construction
Company Limited

MaiREBRAR (HiF1)
Faithmark Investments Limited
[note 1)

Tremend Yield Limited
(K1)

[note 1)
“HREBRAF (HiF1)

Trions Investment Limited
(note 1)

EZEREBRAF (HiF1)
Sure Faith Investment Limited
[note 1)

)=y
BN E 3ok
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

2008/2009 4 #
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
HEEMBRE
BRAHE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

ERR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EBiR1ET
Ordinary
HK$1

ERR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EBik2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

B 208 T
Ordinary
HK$20

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

ARREMG 2
REBDHL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

TEXHK
Principal
activities

bERE
Corporate
financing

Corporate
financing

HEER
Investment
holding

BEER
[nvestment
holding

RARK
Investment
holding

MERE
Property
investment

MERE
Property
investment

MERE
Property
investment

EECEE
Property
holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)

ARRZ TEMBARFENT - (B)

&L,
RIS E—E 3.k
Place of
incorporation/

=g registration
Name and operations
EEEMERRNR (Ha1) BB
Duncan Properties Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)
Dragonhill Limited (#f#1) 58
[note 1) Hong Kong
MR EBR AT (Kat1) BB
Great Regent Investments Hong Kong
Limited [note 1)
BRMBR AR (Bit1) N
Great Prosper Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)
FAFMERSE (KE)BRAF FEAR
(Hix1%4) HAE
Tysan Property Development ([ E)
(Tianjin) Company Limited /R ER
[notes 1 and 4) People's
Republic
of China
("PRC")/
Mainland
China
FAEME (LB) BRAT hE
(Mt 1k5) FR B A 3
Tysan Land (Shanghai) PRC/
Limited (notes 1 and 5) Mainland
China

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

k2B T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

ERB100% T
Ordinary
HK$100

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

20,500,000% 7T
US$20,500,000

ARAEME 2
REFDL
Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

ZEEhEFE —ZTTNHF
2009 2008

100 100

100 100

100 100

90 Q0

90 Q0

80 80

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HEER
Investment
holding

"B
[nvestment
holding

HEER
Investment
holding

"B
[nvestment

holding

MEER
Property

development

MEEERE
Property

development



19. B R RIEZR (&)

ARBIZEIEMBRRFEWT : (8)

=1

Name

ZATERRBBERRAA
(K1)

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited (note 1)

FRIRR(BE)BRAT
(Kt 1)

Tysan Engineering [H.K.)
Company Limited
(note 1)

ZABHAERRA (HE1)
Tysan Trading Company
Limited (note 1)

ERBEEERAF (FIE1)
China Garden International
Limited (note 1)

ARBERRRA (Ffat1)
Red Shine Investment Limited
[note 1)

BRIEBRAT (HiF1)
Hiat Investment Limited
[note 1)

ENEARDR (HE1)

Carriway Limited (nofe 1)

BRTERDE (K1)
Fund House Limited (note 1)

)=y
BN E 3ok
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

2008/2009 4 #

BHEMERARA

A 5 A e A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
HEEMBRE
BRAHE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

gl
10,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

gl
18,500,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$18,500,000

& AR 100/E T
Ordinary
HK$100

@100 T
Ordinary
HK$ 100

EBk2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

TRR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

LB 2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

ARREMG 2
REBDHL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
70 70
70 70
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HEER
Investment
holding

REEHE
T R 75
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical

services

—RES
General
frading

BEZR
Investment

holding
KREZER

Investment

holding

MERE
Property
investment

HEER
Investment

holding
REERK

Investment
holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)
ARB TEMBLRFENT : (B)

&L,
RIS E—E 3.k
Place of
incorporation/

=g registration

Name and operations

EEYEER (LE) hE
BRRE (HiE1Xk4) B 3

Duncan Property Management PRC/
(Shanghai] Company Limited Mainland
[notes 1 and 4) China

LEEEBRREME hE,
HELEERAF B A 3
(Htez1X%4) PRC/

Shanghai China Garden Mainland
International Real Estate China
Development & Management
Company Limited
[notes 1 and 4)

FEREESFEME hE
HELEERAF B A3t
(Hfez1X%4) PRC/

Shanghai Changning Duncan Mainland
Property Development China
Company Limited
[notes 1 and 4)

FBESEMERATRAT hE/
(i 1R5) PRI ALt

Shanghai Duncan Property PRC/
Consulting Company Mainland

Limited China
[notes 1 and 5)

Consco Investment Company N
Limited Hong Kong
(Ktat1)

[note 1)

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

500,000 7T
US$500,000

5,000,000% 7T
US$5,000,000

10,000,000 7T
US$10,000,000

100,000% 7T
US$100,000

Egal
100,000/ 7T
Ordinary

HK$ 100,000

—2EAE
2009 2008

ARAEME 2
REFDL
Percentage

of equity
attributable to

the Company
—EENF

60 60

60 60

60 60

60 60

58.25 58.25

TEXHK
Principal
activities

MRER
Property
management

MERE
Property
investment

MEZER
Property
development

REtmE
HHRS
Provision of
property
consultancy

services

BB
[nvestment

holding
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19. B A RIER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARBIZEENBRAIFEWT - (8) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
EBTK
BREmBRA
AL RAEE AREEEZ
AR EEE Nominal value of REBDHL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity TEXER
£ registration registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
RAREIRARATA BN EFELbe 50 50 RERTR
(Mat 1 %2) Hong Kong 10,200,000 /& 7T BETRR
Tysan Building Construction Ordinary Provision of
Company Limited HK$10,200,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
ZATRRABRAA N TRR2ET 50 50 RERTR
(MtaE 1% 2) Hong Kong Ordinary BETRE
Tysan Project Management HK$2 Provision of
Limited [notes 1 and 2) building and
construction
works
BRARE(CRP) BERAT P EpaLe 50 50 RERTR
(Mat1k2) Macau  JEFTH 25,000 7T BETIR
Mac Tysan Construction Ordinary Provision of
(Macau) Limited MOP25,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
REERAEFRAT &, 10,000,000% T 46.6 46.6 NERA
(Hist1 ~ 2%5) AR A b Us$10,000,000 Property
Tianjin Infernational Building PRC/ investment
Company Limited Mainland
[notes 1,2 and 5) China
REBRAF (K1) B LR 10,0008 97 100 SAER
Sparkle Key Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
[notes 1) HK$ 10,000 holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)

2008/2009 Annual Report

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

et Notes:

1. BEBRNEAARE - 1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. ARAEREASEEZEZRGE 2. The Company has the power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the
T’Eﬁﬁﬁ?%@x;ﬁ BREWRB/E board of directors of these entities and therefore they are regarded as
REIZMEA subsidiaries of the Company.

3. EBERHERELKRS (REELD 3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
A IR RE 2 FE AR B 1018 /%TEZ cumulative dividend af the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year

M HERRGESE 2 BRILE during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
ZEEIEBARERRI) - TEER exceeds HK$ 1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings, no rights fo
BREAE ERE MARNEERREE receive any surplus on a retum of capital on a winding-up (other than the

H&HXéfﬁLuZEﬁﬁﬁ%(‘Z%Hx@

Z B BIBARRRSN -

HZRRZE

%EA%@FﬁﬁMEWWﬁ%%ﬁ

D
ﬁ

[

4, ZE
5E

F> ‘ﬂﬂfh}
%ﬁk

E

o1
o> 8

-
z
AE D

>
>H¥k i‘-ﬁ%

ERAINZARBMBRARRESR
RERGEEZAFEREREATE
FERAREEAHNEEFELHE
DA BEERR - FNEMHE QR
2o BATBRITE -

>k ££10,000f8% 7T) o

)HETFEP BOEBIE M RSN 4.

$ETJ’§EP BA B A R b 5.

amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

These entities are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC
low.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give defails
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

20. BBE N RIS 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
&6 GROUP
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
FEx FEr
HK$000 HK$'000
BiEEEFE Share of nef assets — —
FN e Amount due from an associate 274 264
274 264
o ORE less: Impairment (274) (264)
BENRZRARABERR 28 RE The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
TERRE o fixed terms of repayment.
BERRBEF L REERERATER The carrying amount of the balance with an associate approximates fo its
=, fair value.



21.

. BELTRES (B)

TRBERBZFROT

=1

Name

NEEEERAT

Turbo Dragon Investment Limited

FRIMEZRATIEFELARED
(LA UNCIE SR AN - g
ERAABNERZAKERELD
Al EERR HIHEMBKEARE
SIBABBRITE °

BAFEFABREZRORE

ooospooo i BOHBEBEBERAE R A G
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

REEELZ
BEEED
Pz 2 81T Percentage
RADFHE B3t of ownership
Particulars B O it B inferest FTEEK
of issued Place of attributable Principal
shares held incorporation to the Group activity
BREBEREE HE 50 REER
18T Hong Kong Investment
Ordinary holding
shares of
HK$1 each

The above fable lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, affected the Group's share of results of the associates or
formed a substantial portion of the Group’s interests in associates. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

&E GROUP
—EENF ZEZETN\F
2009 2008
FHET TETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REELTZ Listed equity investments in
BinikE - A Hong Kong, ot market value 2,501 14,452

TR -FENFR-_TTNEF=A
ST RZEhRERIRFHESR
M

The above equity investments at 31 March 2009 and 2008 were
classified as held for frading.
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22. 78 22. INVENTORIES
£8 GROUP
“EENE —ETNF
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
JR#} Raw materials 15,466 6,966
THREAM Spare parts and others 15,817 11,040
31,283 18,006
23. HFEHEEZME 23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
B8 GROUP
—EEBAE T N\F
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
=) At beginning of year 303,521 11,289
BREERET Transfer from properties under
mE (HE17) development (nofe 17) 854,310 672,275
FANEZYE Properties sold during the year (689,682) (380,043)
E N B Exchange realignment 5,727 —
FR Atend of year 473,876 303,521
AEERFRAEHHEEZDELURTER The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China and
MEARBENRHE - AEEETH are held under long term leases. Certain of the Group's properties held
BEHHEEZMETIERTRIT - ER for sale were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities
AEBER 2 ETRITEE 2 HA (M granted to the Group (nofe 31).

31) ©
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24. BEEHN

25,

&HE

BEPEBAH
TRRZRRK
REFBEBAEHN
TRRZHA

FEEZAHKANEE
AR H BB AR MR
EHRREE

B B

B E 5 BRX

24. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

GROUP
—EEAE —EENFE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Amounts due from customers 53,818 78,703
for contract works
Amounts due fo customers
for contract works (132,106) (166,399
(78,288) (87,696)
Confract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less 3,458,094 2,000,427
recognised losses to date
less: Progress billings
received and receivable (3,536,382) (2,988,123
(78,288) (87,696)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEERBEAMITEEESNEEER
R-BTEFEPZYTH—REEH
R0B A (BIRREIEERIN) - AR
BEEETHRT BERLXAAR
AEEZRBESERFERETAT
PER BHRECFERRENETZ
BN - BRRBESEFEGRRE -

]

FEUE 5 R 3K
BE

Impairment

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers

other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of

diversified customers, there is no significont concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables are non-inferest-bearing.

GROUP

Trade receivables

—gTRE -—TINE
2009 2008
FHT FHAT
HK$000  HK$'000
300993 284,224

(828) (224)
300,165 284,000
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25. BWE 5 R (&)

NEZAHEEBFENE  BRE
SEFREEB ZREDTMT

2008/2009 Annual Report

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as af the balance sheet date,
based on the invoice dafe and net of provision, is as follows:

£8 GROUP
—EETNF —EENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEWE Z R : Trade receivables:

90H A Within 90 days 173,752 187,933
91H£180H 91 to 180 days 245 411
181H Z360H 181 1o 360 days 2,077 690
360H LA Lk Over 360 days 17 419
176,191 189,453
FEWIR E & Retention receivables 123,974 94,547
300,165 284,000

BB SEFRERE2EBHMT -

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

&8 GROUP
“EBhE —EENF
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F1) At beginning of year 224 313
ERARERHE Impairment losses recognised 1,220 52
EREAERBR Impairment losses written back — (140)
WiH RS AT U 2 BB Amount written off as uncollectible (616) (1)
FR At end of year 828 224

AL ENE SRR EEE
828,000/ 7t (ZTZ )\ F : 224,000
jt) - BRmEAA{E 51,328,000 T (=&
T\ : 224,000/ ) ° BRI A
BUEZERRERVBEREZRP
B BHEAMKEEF—HH o

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$828,000 (2008: HK$224,000) with a gross carrying amount of
HK$ 1,328,000 (2008: HK$224,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial difficulties and
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered fo be
impaired is as follows:

58 GROUP
—EThF —ZTENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SERETERE Neither past due nor impaired 297,726 282,480
1THZE 90 HRiAH 1 to 90 days past due 245 417
91HZE270E A EEHR 91 to 270 days past due 1,577 690
2708 % 3600 A8 5 More than 270 days past due 117 419
299,665 284,000

MEAHMMEREZRKFEERE
TETPBOBELNTRAE,LAER -
EREHELENEERKFAERE
BASERERHRHTHNBUE
FER - REBERR  KARAEZR
RE HANGEEEEYEEAEHA
BEDGAT2HEE - SHELE
RAEHEFELRERRE - ~AEEY
ERRSEERAEAERIRESHE
tHiEE -

26. HMEWIR - ANRIERR £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

£ N E
GROUP COMPANY
“ETHhF ZETETN\F ZEBENFE —TIT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FHET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B FRIA Prepayments and
KiT& deposits 21,184 72,310 159 169
H {h fE U 3R Other receivables 12,555 166,367 — —
33,739 238,677 159 169
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26.

27.

Htv B IR ~ B RERR &
(&)

R-ZENF=A=+—H8 st AHf
e Yo k38 A A R #140,000,0007T (1B &
A 155,344,000/ 7T ) 2 /& % BUIS # 2
BN UWRBEAEBETKEZEE
Bi FHEERAENZE - &1
ERBRE_SZEN\FRABETA
58 -

MELAEED BHKBBRRE - &
ALEF EREERY BITHE
WESE 2 ERWFIAR -

26.

2008/2009 Annual Report

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)

At 31 March 2008, included in other receivables was an amount of
RMB 140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$155,344,000) advanced fo the
government authority in Shenyang for arranging the relocation of
residents of the land in Shenyang to be acquired by the Group. The
advance was subsequently repaid to the Group in May 2008.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assefs included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

RERBITEF 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
58 GROUP
—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
fit &t FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
THER Time deposifs () 96,477 28,768
XRHEE Restricted cash la), (b) 56,675 3,537
Be RRTET Cash and bank balances [a) 125,416 214,225
Biat - Notes:

a) REEB - KNEBEA £242,836,000
AL (ZFZ)\F : 213,780,000
T ZBRERBITHEFIUARE
(TARE]) BB - ARERTAH
RpBEMEY  AMBENEER
BOIRGEE SERMTEEERE
AEBEAEBRERBETINEER
21T BARBHBBEMER -

ROEFRERRTERNEFELY
BFERRRAE - ERERFEHAEDT
RzBEHER > A—RETZEAT
& RIREEASREBRME -
R A B 2 5 5 E B SN R R ER A
B ReRBTHEF ROERANT
ERE - RITEF RIS FALELH
BOBEL 2 FREEZRIT -

b) RZZBENF=ZA=+—H ZR#
ReERBEAKEZRITEREZHN
FENREERTRPZEREN - 1
ZZEZN\F=ZR=+—H BREHE
BEER  REERTRFRBEE
FRTFMEZCHET 2 ETARE
SHEEME -

[a]  Atthe balance sheet date, the total cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi ["RMB"] amounted to HK$242,836,000
[2008: HK$213,780,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China'’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Adminisiration of Sefflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitied fo exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and twelve months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances
approximate fo their fair values. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(bl Asat 31 March 2009, restricted cash represented time deposits
maintained in an escrow bank account pursuant fo the terms of the Group's
banking facilities. As at 31 March 2008, pursuant o relevant regulations
in the PRC, certain deposits received from the pre-sale of properties under
development in a designated bank account can only be used for the
construction of the relevant properties.
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TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date,
based on the invoice date is as follows:

£H NG
GROUP COMPANY

“BREAF —TTNF ZZEAF —TIENF

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET T#T FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

JERE BB Trade payables:

30HA Within 30 days 205,260 82,236 ) 6
31HZ90H 3110 90 days 1,398 12,212 5 —
91H£180H 91 1o 180 days 8,071 4,609 = =
1808 M £ Over 180 days 4,550 1,826 — —
219,279 100,883 ) 6

ERRE S Refention payables 90,728 22,894 — -
&t 5IR Accruals 96,897 38,190 696 657
406,904 221,967 702 663
BNESEFIREE  —RERH The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally settled on

RNTH:

HENIE EWRFTE RFER
IR

HENREDREE  FHERY
A=A -

EWET &

RZZEZAF=RA=+—8 B&Ki]
SEZENEHEANRBTPIE
A&  AREAREZATEEY
RRR -

RZZBENF=A=+—0 2%
CEBZENEREANRAETPIE
WAl & - ASERDRDEZERIH
BENX  -AmRERFPITEEHN &
HRBFEREANRE  FFAERRA
AEEXNAIE - AREARKEZZ
FERIRRE -

29.

30.

90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS IN
ADVANCE

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of

one month.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2009, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the sale contracts of properties.
Such amounts held by the Group are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 March 2008, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they
were still under development. As contracted with customers, deposifs
were paid fo the Group shortly from the signing of the pre-sale contracts.
Such amounts held by the Group are non-interestbearing.
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

“EENE ZEEN\E
2009 2008
&8 GROUP = ik ERA%
Effective Effective
interest inferest
rate R TEn rate HR TAET
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
"BHER Unsecured:
RITER Bank loans 1.4-5.8 2009-2012 222,808 1866  2008-2011 246,254
[ERMEER Trust receipt loans - - - 3.7-8.3 2008 43,651
222,808 289,905
BHEA Secured:
RITEX Bank overdrafts - - - 5.37.8 On demand 8,443
ERMEER Trust receipt loans 2.1-5.1 2009 43,000 6.08.3 2008 14,420
RITER Bank loans 1.6-9.1 2009-2012 285,428 3.07.2  2008-2009 119,194
PHER Instalment loans 1.4-5.0 2009-2022 88,194 50 2008-2022 01,512
416,622 233,569
ROBERE Total bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
“ERNF ZERN\E
2009 2008
FEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHEE 247 ¢ Analysed info:
ARTSEEA  Bank borrowings
EBRZHFITEE :  repayable:
R—FR5 Within one year
bRl oron demand 396,851 255,075
F_F In the second year 126,846 83,023
F=FZERF  Inthe third tofifth
(BREEEME)  years, inclusive 76,777 111,842
BBRELF Beyond five years 38,956 73,534
639,430 523474
BIR—FENEE - Porion due within
PERRY one year, classified
BE2HM as current liabilities (396,851) (255,075)
REHH long ferm portion 242,579 268,399



31. RIRITIEE (&)

AEBZ7ERRTEENHAAEER
EHEBREES 514131,903,000% T
(ZZZT )\ & : 136,069,000 L) -
332,560,000 T (Z T T N\ F :
337,060,000/ 7T.) 229,925,000/ 7T
(ZZETNF B 2ETETFT R
R (FH3E14)  IREWE (HI515)
R EHEE 2 ME (MiE23) B
1 o

o RRBERARRETHER
ARBZHEEREFIER (M
38(a)) °

AKEMRBRTEEDRFBM KRG
B RITBEZERAERERFER
% o
AEENZEERAEN 2 RITEE
BREELNT

5T
AR
AHE
Bt

BHEMERARA
A 5 A e A
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The Group's secured bank borrowings were secured by certain of its
building, equipment and machinery (note 14), investment properties
(nofe 15) and properties held for sale (nofe 23) with carrying amounts of
HK$131,903,000 (2008: HK$136,069,000), HK$332,560,000
(2008: HK$337,060,000), and HK$229,925,000 (2008: nil),

respectively, at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of the Company’s subsidiaries

(note 38(al).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating interest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in

various currencies are as follows:

ZERNE k¥ JR:2

2009 2008

TEx TEL

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars 618,052 462,813
Renminbi 21,378 41,344
Yen — 7,429
Euro = 11,888
639,430 523,474
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32. ELERIA 32. DEFERRED TAX
RAFERN  BERBABREEZ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
SEWMT as follows:
BEAEFHIEERE Deferred tax liabilities
&6 GROUP
ERE
BHER
TEDS
EfREME  Depreciation
Revaluation  allowance in B
ofinvestment excess of related ~ Withholding st
properties  depreciation faxes Total
FET FEx FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZTZLFEMA—H: At April 2007 (222,274) (2,559 — (224,833
FENABREER/ Deferred tax credited /(charged)
(RBREMKB) 2 fo the income statement 3,012 (2,152) — 860
BT during the year
ERRE Exchange realignment (27,103] — — (27.103]
RZZEENF=B=1+—H8 At31 March 2008 (246,365) 4,711) — (251,076)
R-ZZZEN\FNA—A AT April 2008 (246,365) 4,711) — (251,076)
FENABREER/ Deferred tax credited /(charged)
(REBRENR) 2 fo the income stafement
ELERE during the year 1,034 (3,345) (18,968 (21,279)
ERHE Exchange realignment (6,064) — — (6,064)
R-ZBENEF

=ZB=t-H A 31 March 2009 (251,395) (8,056) (18,968) (278,419)




ERERLIR (&)

WRERR  BERBEERAEY
20T (8

EAHIEEE
ESE]

R-ZZTFTLFMA—H

RZZEENF=A=+—H
NZEENFNA—H
FRFABREX

ZIEER A

R-ZZBZENF=A=1—H

AEEBRERBELECREBEA
241,825,000 T (Z T T N\ F
326,500,000/ 7T.) - A] A fE MR HI4E
HHABBZARZARERT &
e RAEABEIHBRARMEL
JHEBRITERRBELHBE
E  BBEXRTAMNBRNAENREE
B ETATRE -

RIEFEHEEAESTE  RAEA
WRIIMIEEERBEIIMREET IR
ZIREBBMI0%EM - ZIBHRE
AT \F-A-RELERLER
R-FELE+ A=t HZRE
EZ8F - WP ERENREEMRE
AEERA] AR ERE - RIA8E A
BECEMBERE - AAREME
ERBERE% At NEBZARE
REAEBAMKLZMBARRE —F
TNF-A-HRELEZRNMM@A

IR 7 IR SR TEIR -
AABRMG FERE RS ETM
FTSHER -
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
as follows: (Cont'd)

Deferred tax asset

GROUP
T I (E R A
Provision of
land appreciation fax
FET
HK$'000
AT Apil 2007,
31 March 2008 and
1 April 2008 !
Deferred tax credited
fo the income sfatement
during the year 29,051
At 31 March 2009

29,051

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$241,825,000
(2008: HK$326,500,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been lossmaking for some
fime and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the fax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the New CIT law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to

enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective

foreign investors from the foreign investment

from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by its subsidiary established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income fax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

FARMBERARAG @
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33. B

34.

K17

R
2,000,000,000/%
SR EE0BT Y HAR

BERITRER
838,215,903k (=TT )\ & :
837,465,903/%)
SREE0.10/E Tz L@

FR- AASEEREEBTEMUR
HEESX0.82/8 L3 17750,000/ F %
HEEIOB L ZkG BHRERER
615,000/ 7T (FIBR AT ©

BIE

ARA BB 8 2 BN B
KM EE34

BB I HE T &

ARBRERYL —RERERE ([5
g)  REAKERDNEEFLERZ
RERSRERUBRH LR - Zat
BZAER2EERBEARAIZES
(BRBUFNTES) RAKEE D

B ADERFR R X AT 8 h 2 MR AT
BRESSHE  AHTEBBEAR
A ERIEEE HTRD210% °

—
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33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
NS
COMPANY
—EENF —ZTENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
838,215,903(2008: 837,465,903
ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 83,821 83,746

34.

During the year, 750,000 shares of HK$0. 10 each were issued for cash
at a subscription price of HK$0.82 per share pursuant to the exercise of

the Company’s share options for a total cash consideration, before
expenses of HK$615,000.

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme [the “Scheme")
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted fo
be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any ftime.



34. BIRHERTE (&)

ADRZFTEMBNT
B &

Purpose

2mE

Participants

AFET EBRABENFRER
AHAEERTRAZABED]

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as af the
date of the annual report

BER2EEZEEEE
Maximum entitlement of each participant

BRIEEREVEREES IR
Period within which the securities must be

taken up under an option

TR AT VB4 B B R 2 B HARR
Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

S EEAE Y ANE S

Amount payable on acceptance

BETEBZEE
Basis for determining the exercise price

ooospooo i BOHBEBEBERAE R A G
S 5 it % W e
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

REBAERZ2EENERARR B ERELRERR - ANER
ENFEELBNRERMERZ AR AEBHR °

To encourage eligible participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Company while af the same time allow them to share the
fruits of the Company's business achieved through their effort and
contribution.

ARARISHEMMBLARIZITEAR BEFEF (BRATES
RIFMTESR) -

Executives or employees or directors (including both executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

40,196,590 & Bk} B HITHA 24.8% °
40,196,590 ordinary shares and 4.8% of the issued share capital.

TEEEMEM12EAARABARRAEEITREZ 1% o
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

MEFETRNEFRARA  EREABER T NERK HBRE
ERRTEN  EXBERENRLEZEXARR -

Defermined and nofified by the directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of options
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

MEFETREARBHEBOEMGT -
To be defermined by the directors and included in the relevant offer
letters.

/ﬂ}\I\ o
Nil.

MEFEETE  BLAAUTZRSEIRNZEE : (IRBEBFR
HEREEE (WEREXER) H EBRXMARKRAREER K
ME: RINEERLBERERHNRAEZER  SRRNBRM
A&z FHRME -

Determined by the directors but must be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; [ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and (iii] the average
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.



TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008/2009 Annual Report

S8 5 8 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZTAF=A=+—H

34. BRr#ETE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
ARAztEMENT - (B) A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)
FEZBRTFE AEEREN BEER_T-—_F/\A-++tR-
The remaining life of the Scheme The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.
BEREYER THAANBRBRELR Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
BEREG L REZEF - at shareholders’ meetings.
FARBHEMARTEZERED The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during
N the year:
“EBhE —ZTN\F
2009 2008
e ik
F13 F19
TEE fERlRE TEE BB 2
Weighted £ 4= Weighted 2 A
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of opfions
B F BT T+
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
=25 =3
per share per share
F4) At beginning of year 0.82 35,000 — —
FARE Granted/[exercised)
/(171%) during the year 0.82 (750) 0.82 35,000

FR Atend of year 0.82 34,250 0.82 35,000
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34. BRERTE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
REER  BARTEBREZITERE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options oufstanding
RATEHREmT as af that balance sheet date are as follows:
—E2TAF —TTN\F
2009 2008
BREHE BERkEHA 1TEEE* 1T HR
Number of options Number of options Exercise price* Exercise periods
F T BB T
‘000 ‘000 HK$ per share
2,125 2,875 0.82 —_TZ+FNAAAH

E-T——FN\AZ+=H

59-2007 10 23-8-2011

625 625 0.82 —ER+FNANHE
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

6-9-2007 10 23-8-2011

4,000 4,000 0.82 “EEHHFNA-+tH
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

27-9-2007 t0 23-8-2011

1,250 1,250 0.82 —EE+FNAZT+H
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

30-8-2007 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 —EENEFENA=-+MAH
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

24-8-2008 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 “EENFENA=+MAE
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

24-8-2009 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 —E-EF N \A=-+MAH
E-T——FN\A=+=H

24-8-201010 23-8-2011

34,250 35,000
* O BREZTEERMEREAIRE ¥ The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjustment in case of
17 AR RIRAHEMMEUZL ST rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
{ELHEHE - capifal.
RBE_ZZENEF=A=1+—BILHF The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
ER BREuEREZATEE March 2008 was HK$ 15,798,000 (average fair value of HK$0.45
15,798,000 7L (B FH A F(E R each) of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
0.4587T) * W - H 15,193,000/ 7T HK$5,193,000 (2008 : HK$7,725,000) during the year.

(ZEZ )\ : 7,725,000 7T) & A&
SERALBEREMAY -
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34.

35.

BEsTE (&)

REEH  BEE  A28H
34,250,000 ( — T T N\ £
35,000,000/ ) & AR # 1w RAT(F o 1RIR
ARABRTRALERE - 2ETEE KT
FZBBRESEHARBEINET
34,250,000k (= & & N\
35,000,000/% ) & @ % - BINR K B
3,425,000/ 7T (ZZZ\F : 3,500,000
BT - RS E IBRETRZAD B
24,660,000 T (= T & N\ &
25,200,000/ 7T) °

NWEER% E-_TTAF AT
WE  #Z—EAREZEHT £
800,000, BE % # B LK »

REEZEVBHREER - BEF
2| - KA 8)A33,450,0000 (ZZEZN
% : 35,000,000/ ) & AR #E M) R AT -
BARRRIEAEBRITRNODNLI%(ZF
ZNFE 42%) °

(G

(a) £H

RAFERBEFEASEFRE
TRRAEINHHERREBE
EARRBHREY -

BREFHNEGELEZBBEDIR
Bl - A& B B 2 B
DR N BREBRERTE®
REERME -

34.

35.

(a)

2008/2009 Annual Report

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 34,250,000 (2008:
35,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 34,250,000
(2008: 35,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$ 3,425,000 (2008: HK$3,500,000)
and share premium of HK$24,660,000 (2008: HK$25,200,000)

before issue expenses.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 24 June 2009, a total of
800,000 share options were lapsed upon resignation of an employee.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
33,450,000 (2008: 35,000,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4.1% (2008: 4.2%) of
the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 38 of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint venture
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries which are
registered in the PRC has been transferred fo statutory reserves which are
restricted as fo use.



35. &t (&)

(b) 27]

RoTRLEMA-8 A1 Apil 2007

rEEBR Loss for fhe year
ZEELFEER  Findl 2007 dividend
RERE declored

REGEEREZSE  Eouiysetled shore
option arrangements
“EENEER Interim 2008

PHRE dividend poid
“ET)\ERER Proposed 2008
RERE fincl dividend
R-ZENE A 31 March 2008
ZR=t-HR ond
ZER\ERA-A 1 Api 2008
RERHH Proftfor he year
et Equitysefled share
BREH opfion arrcngemen's
fEERE Bxercise ofshare opfions
“EETNFEER  Finol 2008
KERE dividend declored
“ETAERN Inerim 2009
PHRE dividend paid
ETNERER Proposed 2009
FERE finol dividend

RZESNE At 31 March 2000
“A=T-H

ARBFHABERIERAR B D
LA RER—ANL—F2&
EEEMBAZHBRRIRN A
FE - BRBARFTDHITRG
ZEBEZHE - RE-AN—F
BREQATDE  EETHERT
ARBAEHARBD KT K
o
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company

REER/
RBEEE ERERE  (BHFR)  RRAERR
Share SARS Share  Refained profits/ Proposed
premium ~ Confrbuted opion ~ (Accumuloted finol b
account surplus feserve losses) dividend Totl

ifid Tir T Tir TEL TEn TEn
Noles — HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000

318437 29930 - 17,592 12,562 378,501
- - - (5,098 = (5,098
- - - = 12,562 12,562

- - 7725 - = 7725
12 - - - (8,375] = (8,373
12 - - - (12,562 12,562 =
318437 29930 7725 (8,483 12,562 960,191

- - - 16,841 - 16,841

- - 3,193 - = 3,193

33 816 - (276] - = 340
12 - - - = 12,562 12,562
12 - - - (8,382 = (6,382
12 - - = 12,573 12573 =
519,253 29,950 12,642 (12,597) 12,573 561,821

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.
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36.

REMENZHE

(a) TERBHBEA

ASERBEEHOZT - UHE
NERNFRMEDSE - HEEE
THes (M E14) REKEME (Y
i16) o MAOBHR—RIRERBEP
REPXNEM € RIRERT
NEHELHSRE -

REHER  AREREBEEAREP
REPAM TR HEEERLD
RATEBz RERERKES
mEWT
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14 and its investment
properties [note 15) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to four years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants and customers to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rental adjustments according fo the
then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with ifs fenants and
customers falling due as follows:

£8 GROUP
—EENF —ETN\F
2009 2008
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FRN Within one year 65,676 64,297

E_EERF In the second to fifth years,

(BREEMST) inclusive 43,620 31,635
109,296 Q5,932
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36. KEHN=ZH (&) 36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) 1ERAMEA (b) As lessee
AEBERBEEHOTH - UHE The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses, staff
NEM|NFRERTER - %M quarters and certain machinery under operating lease arrangements,
ATHMAEYE B BIRE with leases negotiated for terms ranging from six fo sixty months.

ERETHES -

REER - REBRE T HH At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease
REBORUATERZ RRKE payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
BAOMKEENT
&8 GROUP
“2Zhf —ZTENF I
2009 2008 'ul
FET FET \
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 9,284 11,091
F_EERF In the second to fifth years,
(BREEMF) inclusive 3,872 7416
13,156 18,507
ARAREER T EEMRLENR The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at the

DLk (ZTENF - |) o balance sheet date (2008: Nil).
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37. A

BR b 32T 3 36 (o) 3F 4 2 A% & R A AR R
O REER - AEBFBERAEN

37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments defailed in note 36(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the balance

T sheet date:
£8 GROUP
—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B BRETH Authorised, but not contracted for
ME - ERERRE Property, plant and equipment 9,479 8,858
BETR) - BRIERE Contracted, but not provided for
M - B REE Property, plant and equipment 23,446 34,953
T E A Land use rights — 164,000
23,446 198,953
32,925 207,811

o REERERTMEZEITY
BRERBZAER_TTNF=FA
=+—HA257,382,0008 L (ZZTZF
J\%E : 577,593,000/ 7T) °

REEH  ARRIUEEAAE (ZF
TNFE E) -

In addition, the Group had confracted, but not provided for, commitments

in respect of construction works relating to properties under development
amounting to HK$257,382,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$577,593,000.

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date

(2008: Nil).
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(a)

REER  ARPBREAEL
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in

BEIIRBENT the financial statements were as follows:
&8 NG
GROUP COMPANY
—EENE —EENF —EENE —EENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FAL FE FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
RE R Guarantees given fo financial
FMTEARRE  institutions in connection with
—REEER general credit faciliies and finance

RBEMOER  lease facilities granted

4 T2 ER to subsidiaries — — 1,040,366 705,500
RENRES Guarantees in respect of
miEd 2 ER performance bonds 154,041 135,760 154,041 135,760

RZEENF=ZA=+—H " ' K
SERETHEARLZRIBRE
MRHER  ZZREREIR
AARENBETHASEE
MEARER  MEMLH2IZ
BER  ZEERZABERS
B30 4281,409,0007 7T ©

ARENERBREHERERS
EXE ERHEREEEER
IF e

RZFZNF=ZA=1—8B &
EERZAFELTEXR ME
ERRMAREE N TR - AEY
X2 ERFERMEHERMN
REBASHRBPERETNE R
AR MM BRI ER L
ERIEM B -

154,041 135,760 1,194,407 841,260

(b]  Asat 31 March 2008, the Group had provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for purchases of certain properties
developed by a subsidiary of the Group and the outstanding
mortgage loans under these guarantees amounted to

HK$281,409,000.

The Group's guarantee period started from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ended upon issuance of the relevant
ownership certificates.

The fair value of the guarantees was not significant and the
directors considered that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties could cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty and therefore no provision had been made for
the guarantees in the financial statements at 31 March 2008.
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38. HZARERE

(c)

(&)
— = 7)\£'E/\H+/\EI Z'KE
@ﬁt/ —HRARER

Utﬁiﬁnﬁﬁ@ﬁ b g
FEZFRIZEREEARE
5,180,0007T ( #75,872,000/% 7T )
ZREEZRBEAL - AR
AEBHE=FRANKILR
DEMB ([ EE1TE)]) - RZF
ZNFNLANE  EETHZHE
EREEERRERY - WA
ol HABEREBE A EGIM
FEFBUAGIETT - REERR=
ZEN\F+-AELBERK
[ - B EFE&ERZRENR
“EENF-RELETEAA
RizEREE - R=TZNEF=A
—“+tH - AEEEELEER

BH - EBTH RERR D
RER BRAREXMTARE

5,180,0007T ° AL B IFEEARF L
BEGETEHBE  mMAEER
BREHBREBERRERE
#o

RZZEZNFENA+TH  EFE
aEEk ([BAER]) —BEE
BHZEENESR  LETHZ
BEEZRAEBIRHARE
5,180,0007C ([&#&1TE)]) - K&
BER-_ZZN\F+A=+/\H
MEBERBBEREMENLE
ERAXBAZERTR EM
FBERF  REAR LBERERSE
BEREABEHMEL DB
ETHR - AEBEESHEB
EhETRAMAESEAZFZH
/H\]q °
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(c)

On 16 June 2008, the Group lodged a petition to the Shanghai
First Intermediate People’s Court (the “Shanghai Court” fo rescind a
service contract signed with a third party for a service fee of up fo a
maximum amount of RMBS5,180,000 (approximately
HK$5,872,000) as a result of a dispute in the contract terms
between the Group and the third party (the “Shanghai Action”). On
9 September 2008, the defendant of the Shanghai Action
submitted its objection to the Shanghai Court and claimed that the
adjudication of the disputes should be raised under the Hong Kong
law instead of the PRC Law. The objection was dismissed by the
Shanghai Court in November 2008 and the appeal against the
decision of the Shanghai Court was also dismissed by the
Shanghai Higher People’s Court in January 2009. On 27 February
2009, the Group received a nofification from the Shanghai Court
that the defendant of the Shanghai Action submitted a counterclaim
and requested the Group to make the payment of RMBS5, 180,000.
fix the date
for the trial and the Group will submit the defence fo the Shanghai

The Group is currently waiting for the Shanghai Court to

Court at the trial.

On 10 September 2008, by a writ issued in the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Court"),
the defendant of the Shanghai Action, claimed the Group for the
payment of RMB5, 180,000 (the “Hong Kong Action”). The Group
has applied on 28 October 2008 to the Hong Kong Court to stay
all further proceedings in the Hong Kong Action in favour of the
Shanghai Court on the ground that the Shanghai Court is a more
appropriate forum than the Hong Kong Court for the adjudication
of the disputes raised. The Group is currently also waiting for the
Hong Kong Court fo fix a date for the hearing of the Group's
application.
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Having considered the legal advice from the Group's PRC legal
counsels, the directors believe that the Group has a good case in
respect of the Shanghai Action. In addition, taking into account of
the legal advice from the Group’s Hong Kong legal counsels, the
directors believe that the Group has good grounds of defence in
case the Hong Kong Action is ordered to proceed in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the directors consider that no provision for the service
fee is necessary.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Outstanding balance with a related party

Details of the Group's amount due from its associate as at the
balance sheet date are included in note 20 to the financial
sfatements.

AEBTEEEANE 2 HB W (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
T Group
B GROUP
—2EAE ZTIN\F
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEEEA Short term employee benefits 32,022 28,109
EEERERT Equity-settled share option expense 4,923 7,328
ER®%EH Postemployment benefits 128 116
ENTEEEBRAE Tolal compensation paid fo key
2 R e management personnel 37,073 SGIEE 3

EREEHMeFRBERNUIBERE
BisES o

FAAEEFEECRLEEZ
—ERAEMEMEERNT TE
BERARAR (AARA—EH
TESEKLEHEA0%NEER)
ZH£H%1,9100008 T (=ZF
Z)\% : 1,680,000 7C) °

(c]

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred rental expenses fo Land Smart
Development Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. David
Chien, an executive director of the Company, in respect of a lease
for an office property in Shanghai of HK$ 1,910,000 (2008:
HK$1,680,000)
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40. ZERE D 2EMIA 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REEH  EREMIAZKREEN

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial insfruments as

T at the balance sheet date are as follows:
£5 GROUP
EREE Financial assets
“ZENE “ER\E
2009 2008
BOVERA BATEIA
ERveREE BREREE
—BEEE —FEEE
Financial assefs Financiol assefs
atfair value atfair value
EHR  through profit Bk through proft
EhzE orloss— EzE orloss
Loans and held for #3f Loans and held for #it
receivables trading Totel recelvables frading Totol
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RUBSER Trade receivables 300,165 - 300,165 284,000 - 284,000
ZATHE Equiy invesiments of
fTABR fairvalue
LEARE through profit or loss - 2,501 2,501 - 14,452 14,452
ARl Other receivables 12,555 — 12,555 166,367 — 166,367
THER Time deposis 96,477 — 96,477 28,768 — 28,768
XRHES Resticted cash 56,675 - 56,675 3,537 - 3,537
BEeRBNER Cash and bank balances 125,416 - 125,416 214,225 - 214,225
591,288 2,501 593,789 696,897 14,457 711,349
= N=L Financial liabilities
—EENE “EENE
2009 2008
REERATER REBERATR
ZEREE JEREE

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities

at amortised cost ot amortised cost

FER TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ENESERRENRES Tade payables and refention payables 310,007 123,777
H ot A 50R Other payables 20,885 31,359
M ERITIEE Inferest-bearing bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
970,322 678,610
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40. RERE D 2RI E (&) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
AN=T| COMPANY
SREE Financial assets
“ZEZRE —EENE
2009 2008
EXRERGE EXRERGIE
Loans and loans and
receivables receivables
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE A a2 xR (BEE19) Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 19) 775123 777 208
RITHET Bank balances 193 270
775,316 /77,478
SREE Financial liabilities
—EERE —EEN\E
2009 2008

R R ARSI R 12 SRR B BR
ZERMEE ZEemEE
Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
at amortised cost ot amortised cost
FH T T#T

HK$'000 HK$'000

KRB AR 2 FIE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 146,169 144,892
JE R E 5 B8R0 Trade payables 6 6

146,175 144,898
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1. BHEREERREREE

AEBCIZRIABERE KRR
1T467F - BWE RN E U
B BAVEFABZZBNHEE
FEAS 5 5 Bk ok I H At A9 50 IB DA 2 3R
T8 ZEeMIAZHEBERUHK
HRABMEIARE - EZFERT
AR RRRMAREZSRRZ
BREHIMT - EEEEENERK
TRk - ARERER kAR REVE

B

=EEmRERE

AREZTREREERTE MR
B AR EIE B8R R i fE

TR o

ARBERAEER S 2 RITHABRR
FEFRARBERTZREENE &
RITBFZEERARTK

AEEZEERREIEREEEKRE
SEFEEMBEKARIE EEERE
ERGHERNESEE  MASER
HBERBRYTEKX - AEETE
FERBRBESET BN IEHZ
RRAMZELZEARZIEFREFL - A
AASEERRARKESERRE
fEKFEFERBR 2 ES L8
BRI SRR M 325 K% 2655 -

AEBERAARMAR T BHERMD
EAREERR  #—FPFBERTBR
RUTFE38HE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank balances,
frade and other receivables, equity investments at fair value through profit
orloss, trade and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances, and
frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high creditratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atiributable fo its trade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure fo
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes
25 and 26 to the financial statements.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
nofe 38 fo the financial statements.
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MEEBEEEEREE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)
Tl 2 [z B Interest rate risk
AEBERGZMNEZEHERTIZHRN The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
MERTEEEE - PEEEREE its interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rafes expose
B e ) R L B o N2 B B A the Group to interest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
KEHMHR - BEML - EEEEE interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors the Group's
AEBEREG N XE R I[H%%)Fﬁ?% inferest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant inferest rate
2REPEANRE R exposure should the need arise.
TRITEMBEMBEHERTE The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably possible
BRAT  AEBZBREAEN (FAY change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
FREEZRE) &Zﬁg B (R Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowmgs)
FHEBIEERFER) HREREHERAS and the Group's equity (before any impact on tax).
BARLE B 2 R
£E GROUP
R EIpE]
A= D Rz
A Decrease A
Increase in in profit Decrease
inferest rate before tax in equity”
TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2AF 2009
100 £ 2
RITER Banks loans 100 basis point 6,394 —
—TTNF 2008
100 &EF 84 -
RITEX Bank overdrafts 100 basis point
100 £ & 5,150 —=
RITER Bank loans 100 boasis point

* TERREER

Excluding retained eamings
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1. MBEREREEERBE (£)

SN E 2L

AREIEREE  RFARTEAN
REXK  ERHFORZHUET
BB RARBEE - XFE - A&
BzRTEENETRARE (ZFF
NE BT AR% - BEREUT) &t
g -

TEIFR-FENE= A=+
B ERAEMEBERTEZER
T AREZBEIEN (AEEEE
REFIAFEEREY) RALEY
AU AERBTER LR AR
28 Gl -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
with most of ifs fransactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars, Pataca and
Renminbi. In the current year, the Group had bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (2008: Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and Euro).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at 31 March 2008 to a
reasonably possible exchange rafe change in Japanese Yen and Euro,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and
the Group's equity.

£H GROUP
Bx  BRHEAER
Change in Decrease B
exchange in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity*
TET FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—TENF 2008
WAETTH If Hong Kong dollars weakens
AESZ against Japanese Yen 5% 291 —
i 7 7T 5, If Hong Kong dollars weakens
EVIVERE 4 against Euro 5% 625 —

* TEERZEMN

EEERBERASEMEH EY
BB - XHRAETRE T -

Excluding refained earnings

Management monitors the Group’s currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and will enfer into hedges when the need arises.
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mEBE T E R

AEEZEEABRFARITEER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between confinuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has

adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities
as af the balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

S GROUP
ZEENF
2009
12187

RER DY) 1258  5FNE
B2  lessthan Tto5 Over @t
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total
TET TET TET THEx THEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENESRHRENRES  Tode payables and refention payables — 310,007 — — 310,007
EH MR Other payables — 20,885 — — 20,885
MERTEE Interestbearing bank borrowings — 397,370 203,999 38,956 640,325
- 728,262 203,999 38,956 971,217

It % JR:2
2008
1218A

REK AR 12068  SHFNLE
BE less than 05 Over @t
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
TEx TEx TiEx TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENESRHRENRES  Tode payables and refention payables — 123777 — — 123
EH AR Other payables = 31,359 — — 31,359
WERTEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 8,443 246,632 194,865 73,534 523,474
8,443 401,768 194,865 73,534 678,610

FARMBERARAG @
A T R ik
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41. BREREEEEZERBE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

mEBELEE (E) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
N COMPANY
S
2009
BRER 12f8ANUR 125  5HNL
BE  lessthan 1105 Over At
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total

TET TEx TEx FEx FEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

KB AR IR Amounts due fo subsidiaries 146,169 — — — 146,169
EREHEN Trade payables — 6 — — 6
146,169 6 - - 146,175
“BENF
2008

BEX 2HANA  1E5F SFHNE
B Less than To5 Over @it
Ondemond 12 months years 5 years Tofal

FETL FETL FETL FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RBAR 2 FE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 144,892 — — — 144,892
R HER Trade payables — 6 — — 6
144,892 6 - — 144,898
ETHEERTHEEZ L FHE Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
EERR NEREERBRMEST The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets
ZEREERCREBZERAERA and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet
BEZRTFERE approximate to their respective fair values.
R MEE B B2 Equity price risk
P HE B AR 2 Bt 2 15 A R 4 15 BUK F &% Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
BrEscBEZDREREZSL as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
FEEREZRR R-_ZFTAFR- individual securities. The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising
ZENF=HA=1t—H ~5EEH from individual equity investments classified as trading equity investments
AEMNBORERSEABEERMHE (note 21) as at 31 March 2009 and 2008. The Group's listed
& (FaE21) Mol Bz EEREAR - investments are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and are
AEBELTREDREEMER S valued ot quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

MERARIRED  YREEAM
GWmEGE -
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. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Equity price risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo every 10% decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the balance sheet date.

BRNEE  BRBADEF
ZBREE D R
Carrying Decrease D *
amount of in profit Decrease
equity investments before tax in equity
TET T#ET TETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2EhE 2009
BATHE Equity investments
AR at fair value
ZBRINIE through profit or loss 2,501 250 —
—TENF 2008
BATE Equity investments
AR at fair value
2R RE through profit or loss 14,452 1,445 —

* TBEREEN

BAEE

AEEEREEZIBARAERR
EEBRNRFELERBZRAE
ERBFREFEERLRUIFEER
I & AEAIREE -

A EE R BRI BB E LA
KEBULELEE - ARBTARE

KE ASEREREIATRE
ZHRE - REREZAASETHR
- REE-BTAFZ A=+
R-ETNFZAS+-BILEE
M BRRE . BR R &
TR

*  Excluding refained earnings

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to
safeguard the Company's ability fo continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital rafios in order to support ifs business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo it,
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the

years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.
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41. BREREEEEZERBE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

EXEE (&) Capital management (Cont'd)
AEERBERBBLEXERHER The Group monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is nef debt
B MERABLLRTIAELFER divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
RUREEERERZTE - AEEZH maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes inferest-
REEMAFERBBLEEN0% ° bearing bank borrowings, trade payables and retention payables, other
BEREFEBEMERTEE  ENE payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of
SEFREMNRES - HMENKE the Group. The gearing ratfios as at the balance sheef dates were as
RRERERBELEE - ERABRER follows:
SEAES  NEER BRARH
KT -
g 1% S—
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
i RRITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
e E 5 R Trade payables and retention payables 310,007 123,777
REMRES
H A e 1 3R I8 Other payables 20,885 31,359
B EHER less: Time deposits (96,477) (28,768)
X HIR e Restricted cash (56,675) (3,537]
ReRETHEF Cash and bank balances (125,416) (214,225)
55 Net debt 691,754 432,080
B Total equity 1,934,692 1,493,384
ERBRELE Gearing ratio 36% 29%
42. B WMR 2 42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BEEEER_TTNFARAZ-+RH The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

HERKERBEMBRE - board of directors on 26 June 2009.



HEPUE
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BRMEE
1t B Type of

Location development

R BT F=E
e R Residential
H B TR

ZMEE

The Waterfront

Guangfu Road West,

Putuo District,

Shanghai, PRC

B K™ F=x
R Residential
BNEREREERIR

FHFE

The Riverside

At the junction of Qiongzhou Road

and Jiefangnan Road,

Hexi District,

Tianjin, PRC

N ELYES

FEHRT
Expected
completion

—ETAF
Year 2009

—T-FF
Year 2010

PROPERTIES FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

BEME
1 B Type of
Location development
HEEEEEGT FE/EE
SR E A Residential /
Huanghe Nan Daijie, Commercial

Huanggu District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province, PRC.

2008/2009 4 #

i B T &
Site areas
(FHK)

(sq.m)

62,889

15,160

B S
Site areas
(FHK)

(sq.m)

41,210

B4
REEER
Approximate
gross floor
area
(F7K)
(sq.m)

147,000

75,000

B4
REREER
Approximate
gross floor
area
(FFK)
(sq.m)

165,000

BHEMERARA

LR E B

SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

rEE
PrisREs
Group's
interest

80%

Q0%

AEE
Fris s
Group's
interest

Q7%

BT
Stage of
completion

IREERR
HORT
Construction
commenced
and partially
completed

TRERHA
R R T
Construction
commenced
and partially

completed

P B
Stage

B
Site
Clearance
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BREYE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

1o B REAE B

Location Existing use Type of lease

B R E T EE/mE o
AE & Residential /Commercial Medium
B R BE 755

REZERKE

Tianjin Infernational Building,

75 Nanjing Road,

Heping District,

Tianjin, PRC

hE EET F=x &8
REELILHE Residential long
SREFEI9F 1-6%

ERAE

China Garden,

Nos. 1-6, lane 39 Ronghuaxi Road,

Gubei New Area, Changning District,

Shanghai, PRC

R T F=x &
RERITBIRE Residential long
22227 EREHAE

ABENVMEEEELRL -

BEE 21 K 33fA & fiL

19 residential units of Block A,

Whole of Block B and 33 car parks,

Aidu Building, No. 55 lane 2222,

Honggiao Road, Changning District,

Shanghai, PRC
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TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE INFORMATION

2008/2009 Annual Report

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11/F Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

BRANCH REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.tysan.com
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